VSPV & Co

Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
REPORT ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited
(“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in equity and Statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying Standalone Financial Statements give the information tequited by the Act in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at Match 31, 2023 and profit, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards ate further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER PARAGRAPH

e We draw your attention to the note 4.2 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended 31" March 2023 regarding consolidated report of foreign wholly owned subsidiary in
Dubai, UAE with accumulated losses which exceeds its net worth as at the end of the year.
However, as per the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 of Zuari
Infra Middle East Limited, the said subsidiary, the Management has considered that Company as
a going concern for the reasons listed in the specific note given.

e We draw your attention to the note 8.3 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended 31* March 2023 regarding advance payments of Rs. 639.61 lakhs made by the Company
under the Development Management Agreement to agencies against which the said agent-
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initiated insolvency resolution proceedings. The Management has currently initiated legal
proceedings and is putsuing recovety through arbitration and other legal means with that party.
The management does not expect any significant effect of the same on its carrying balance and
expects to adjust/recover the same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary

at this stage.

e We draw your attention to the note 8.6 of the accompanying financial statements for the year
ended 31%" March 2023 regarding recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor amounting to
Rs.2,246.49 lakhs including interest to Rs.33.72 lakhs. The Management has currently initiated
legal procecedings and is putsuing recovery through arbitration and other legal means with that
patty, and is optimistic that this advance will be completely recovered by the Company. Hence in
the view of the Management no provision is considered necessaty at this stage.

Our opinion is not modified on the above matters.
OTHER INFORMATION

The Company’s management and Boatd of Directors are responsible for the othet information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Annual Report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditot’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion theteon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, outr responsibility is to tread the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit ot otherwise appeatrs to be materially
misstated. If, based on the wotk we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of approptiate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policics; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuting the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that gives a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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In pteparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concetn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting.
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole, are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issuc an auditor’s teport that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and performed audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

» Obtain an undetstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that ate appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made hv manacement.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatdonships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and whete applicable, related
safeguards.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the Annexure a statement on the mattets specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Ordet, to the extent
applicable.

As requited by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the putposes of our audit.

a. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from out examination of those books.

b. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

¢. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

d. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2023 from being appointed as a directot in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

e. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure B.

f. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with
requirements of Sec 197(16) of Act:

- In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to
us the company has complied with the provisions of section 197 of the Act to the extent
applicable in respect of managerial remuneration paid duting the year.
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g With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed pending litigations which would impact its financial position
(Refer Note 30.1 of the accompanying financial statements).

ii. The Company has made provision as required under applicable law or accounting
standard for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts.

iii. There wete no amounts which were required to be transfetred to the Investor Education
and protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that other than those disclosed in the notes to
accounts,

() no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
person(s) ot entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaties”), with the understanding
that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
ot provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaries.

(i) no funds have been received by the company from any petson(s) or entities including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) or
provide guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures petformed, we report that nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to believe that the above representations given by the
management contain any material misstatement

Chartered Accountants
Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner
VSPV& Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm No.005483N

Place  : Bangalore
Date  :12-May-2023
UDIN : 23200924BGTDQNG767
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(1)

(it)

ANNEXURE REFERRED TO IN CLAUSE 1 OF REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS PARAGRAPH OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

Re: Zuari Infraworld India Limited (‘the Company’)

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:

a) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant and Equipment. The Company has maintained proper records showing full

particulars of intangible assets.

b) The Company has a program of vetification (o cover 4ll the ilems of fixed assets in a phased
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no

material discrepancies wete noticed on such verification.

©) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of the immovable
propetty of the company which is part of the inventory is held by the company in its own name.
As stated in the Note 14 of the Standalone Financial Statements the immovable property has

been mortgaged with the banks/financial institutions as a security for the facilities availed.

d) The Company has not revalued its Propetty, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use

assets) or intangible assets or both duting the year

¢) The Company has no proceedings that have been initiated or are pending against the company
for holding any Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and

Rules made thereunder.

a) The inventory held by the company has been physically verified by the management during the
year and no discrepancies noticed on such verification between the physical stock and the book

tecords. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

b) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the company has
not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, during any
point of time of the year from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current

asscts

(a ) during the year the company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, provided

guarantee and secutities to companies as follows
Amount ( Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars Loans
Aggregate amount granted
/provided duting the year
Subsidiaties 3,790.00
Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
Subsidiaries 3,941.92
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(iv)

\)

(vi)

(vii)

@)

®)

(b) Dutring the yeat investments made, guarantee provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of all loans and advances in the natute of loans & guarantee provided are not
prejudicial to company, s interest.

(¢) In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has been stipulated ie. repayable after three years from the date of
disbursement.

(d) According to the information given to us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us
there are no overdue amounts exceeding 90 days.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, loan granted which has fallen due
during the year, has been renewed.

Amount ( Rs. Tn Lakhs)

Name of the party Aggregate amount of over Percentage of the aggregate
dues of existing loans to the total loans or advances
renewed in the nature of loans granted

during the year

Zuati Infraworld Middle East | 2,631.75 69%

Limited

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(ii1)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and secutities provided, as
applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by
the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate authorities including Provident fund,
FEmployees State Tnsurance fund, income tax, service tax, cess ot any other statutory dues.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees” state insurance, income tax, service tax, cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a petiod of mote than six months
from the date they became payable.

Details of statutory dues referred in sub clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2023, on account of disputes are given below.

- VS‘P r & Co.
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(viid)

(x)

(xd)

Nature of Statue | Nature of dues Forum where | Period to which | Amount in Rs in
dispute is | amount relates lakhs
pending

Income Tax Act | Disallowance of | Commissioner AY 2018-19 9.74

1961 loss of Income Tax
(Appeal)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions that ate not
recorded in the books of accounts which have been surrendered or disclosed as income duting
the ycar in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(a) Based on the examination of records and information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not dcfaulted in repayment of its loans ot payment of interest to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any banks,
financial institution or government or any government authotity..

(c) According to the explanation provided to us, the company has utilised the monies raised by
the way of term loans for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

(d) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view
of the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, funds raised on short term basis was not utilised for long term purposes

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of
the financial statements of the Company, we treport that the Company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates
ot joint ventures.

(f) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaties, joint
ventures or associate companies.

(2) The company has not raised the money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) duting the year and hence repotting under clause (x)(a) of the order
is not applicable

(b) During the year, company has not made any preferential allotment ot private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
(®)(b) of the order is not applicable.

(a) No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this repott.



(xi)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xv1)

(xvid)

(xviii)

(c)No whistle-blower complaints were received during the year by the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

In out opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with trespect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opiion the Compatty has an adequale inlernal audit system commensurate with the
size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.

In our opinion during the yeat the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(@) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Ordet
is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core Investment Companies (Resetve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting under
clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedutes
performed, the Company has incurred cash losses in the Financial Year Rs. 2,582.76 Lakhs and
not incurred any cash losses in the immediately preceding Financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial labilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, we
are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one yeat from the balance sheet date.




In our opinion, company does not fulfil the ctitetia specified in section 135(1) of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xx) of the order are not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-cygrent assets
(a.) Progerty, plant and equipment 3.1 51.58 104.83
(b.) Other intangible assets 3.2 8.06 5.94
(c.) Right-of-use assets 3.3 90.72 136.08
(d.) Financial assets:
(i.) Investments 4 2,558.16 2,558.16
(ii.} Loans 5 21,732.13 15,719.58
(fii.) Other financial assets 6.1 32.02 33.40
(e.) Deferred tax asset (net) 7.0 123.15 120.22
(f.) Other assets 8 922.82 868.82
25,518.64 19,547.03
Current assets
(a.) Inventories 9 22,007.53 27,925.17
(b.} Financial assets
(i.) Trade receivables 10 907.22 1.837.14
(ii.) Cash and cash equivalents 11 5,549.77 1,171.74
(iii.) Bank balances other than (ii} above 24,542.29 23,417.76
(iv.) Other financial assets 6.2 5,175.26 3,058.30
(c.) Income tax assets (net) 165.89 140.96
(d.) Other assets 8.1 2,681.82 2,795.28
61,029.78 60,346.36
86,548.42 79,893.39
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a.) Equity share capital 12 5,000.00 4,655.00
(b.) Other equity 13 9,722.57 10,732.89
14,722.57 15,387.89
Liabilities
Noun-current liabilities
{a.} Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 14.1 4447175 37,830.11
(ii.) Lease liabilities 15.1 119.18 190.00
(iii.) Trade payables 16.1
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small 245.29 245.29
(b) Provisions 18.1 34.82 53.91
(c.) Deferred tax liability (net) 7 -
44,871.04 38,319.31
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 14.2 14,177.34 12,965.53
(ii.) Lease liabilities 15.2 76.82 67.52
(iii.) Trade payables 16.2
- Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.51 0.51
- Total Putstandlng dues of creditors other 1,249.16 1,522.55
than micro enterprises and small
(iv.} Other financial liabilities 171 5,136.71 1,726.07
(b.} Other liabilities 19 6,289.84 9,901.96
(c.) Provisions 18.2 24.44 2.04
26,954.81 26,186.19
86,548.42 79,893.39

JThe accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

perfour report attached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

uari INfradgrid India Limit

\ L g

. Chaﬁcte(‘l £
Vikas Gupta, FCA ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Membership N6.200924 Director & CEO Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891
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Chartered Accountants
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Date : 12.05.2023
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
Particulars Note For the year For the year ended
No. ended 31 March 2022
31 March 2023

Revenue from operations 20 7.216.52 6,441.18
Other income 21 3,658.20 2,559.62
Total Income 10,874.72 9,000.80
EXPENSES:

Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project coste 22 1,892.16 3,160.69
Changes in construction work-in-progress 23 2,965.66 1,764.94
Employee benefit expenses 24 591.26 298.54
Finance costs 25 7,589.60 3,243.70
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 69.08 68.99
Otner expenses 27 436.22 366.23
Total expenses 13,543.98 8,903.09
Profit before tax (2,669.25) 97.70
Tax expense 28

Current tax expense - 96.50
MAT Credit of earlier year L
Deferred tax (2.93) (267.10)
Total tax Expense (2.93) (170.61)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (2,666.32) 268.31

Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Gratuity) - 11.29

Tax relating to itemns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - (3.14)

Total Other Comprehensive Income - 8.15

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (2,666.32) 276.46
31

Basic & Diluted (5.56) 0.58

Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 4,79,77,260 4,65,50,000

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

e A\,

Vikas Gupta, FCA ~ ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB ANSHUL A. BANSAL

Membership N0.200924 Director & CEOQ Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891
Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQNG767
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)
Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & amortisation expense

Interest Income

Loss on sale of fixes assels

Balances no longer required, net

Net gain on investments

Interest expense

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCI
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for net changes in -

Trade receivables

Financial and other assets

Inventories

Trade payables

Provisions

Financial and other liabilities

Net cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid, net of refunds

Net cash generated from / (used in) operating activities

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Additions to property, plant and equipment
Sale/Adjustment of property, plant and equipment
Investments in Mutual Funds

Proceeds from sale of Investments in Mutual Funds
Loans to subsidiaries, net of repayments

Deposits held with banks

Receipts from net investment in right-of-use assets
Interest received

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Borrowings, net of repayments

Issure of equity shares

Interest paid (including interest transferred to work-in-progress)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11)

This space has been intentionally left blank

(2,669.25) 97.70
86.50 97.87
= (2,313.38)
0.49 .
2.06 15.55
- (61.79)
8,042.00 4,428.33
: 11.29
5,461.79 2,275.58
929.92 {1,091.07)
(2,058.95) (4,667.67)
5,917.65 3,000.14
(273.39) 67.15
3.30 (3.51)
(263.01) (2,044.72)
9,717.32 545.89
(24.93) (187.63)
9,692.39 358.26
(7.45) (17.54)
16.95 1.29
- (550.00)
. 4,700.72
(6,012.55) (4,316.40)
(1,188.71) (16,311.45)
: 9.82
658.99 0.72
(6,532.78) {16,482.84)
5,533.12 20,468.20
2,001.00 -
(5,721.67) (3,218.76)
1,812.45 17,249.44
4,972.06 1,124.86
1.171.74 46.88
6,143.80 1,171.74
VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:

Particulars As at 31 Cash Flow Trf. to Non-Cash Adj. As at 31 March 2023

March 2022 Securities (Fair Value

Premium Adjustments)

Long term borrowings 31,156.53 6,641.64 - - 37,798.17
Redeemable Preference 1,108.59 - - 1,108.59
Shares (Debt portion)
Lease liabilities (including 491.44 - 491.44
security deposit received for
Net investment in sub lease)
Short term borrowings 17,510.41 1,211.81 - 18,722.22
Trade payables 1,768.35 (273.39) - 1,494.96
Other current financial 1,726.07 3,410.64 - 5,136.71
liahilities

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

i InfraWorld India Limited

Vikas Gupta, FCA ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB

Membership No.200924 Director & CEQ Director_
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891
VSPV&Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQN6767

ehalf of the Board of Directors of

ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Chief Financial Officer
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No. As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

A. Equity share capital 12 5,000.00 4,655.00
B. Other eq uity
Particulars | Securities Equity | Retained earnings Total
premium account| Component of
convertible
‘ preference
. | shares
Balance as at 31 March 2021 | 10,305.00 415.96 (264.52) 10,456.43
Profit for the perio | 260.31 268.31
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 8.15 8.15
Balance as at 31 March 2022 | 10,305.00 415.96 11.94 10,732.89 |
Profit for the period ‘ (2,666.32) (2,666.32)
Addition during the year 1,656.00 1,656.00
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 — 11,961.00 415.96 | (2,654.39) 9,722.57 |
For ang-behalf of the Board of Directors of
/ 22—

C}k art Qf{'.'J‘ Aceoun \\ /
Vikas Gupta, FCA - ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Membership No.200924 Director & CEO Direttor Chief Financial Officer
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891

VSPV& Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQN6767

Page 5 of 44



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1

(@)

(b.

-

(i)

(iii.)

Corporate information:

Zuari Infraworld India Limited (“the Company" or “ZIIL") [CIN: U45309KA2007PLC043161] is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zuari Global
Limited ("ZGL") The company is a public limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India.The Company is primarily into the business of developing residential cum commercial properties intended for sale.

The standalone financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting held
through viden canference and other visual means (VC) dated May 11, 2023,

Significant accounting policies:
Basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and in accordance with the reporting
requirements under Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to the extent notified.

These Accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements except where a newly issued/ notified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy which was in use.

Current and Non-current classification

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. As the Company is engaged in developing a residential cum commercial project, the
normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle at least 12 months after the reporting date for the purpose of Current - Non-
current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considered appropriate.

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclosed in the financial statements have been
rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013., except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
such assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing notes. Accounting estimates could change from year
to year and also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding these estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year
in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:
The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the Company
and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:

The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical default rates
absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and liabilities and their resultant
fair values.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transaction conducted at arms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance value less incremental cost
for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from budget for the future
years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rates used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Chertered Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(iv,) Contingencies:

(v.

(vi.)

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not occur.

Construction work-in-progress

The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in progress and
completed units. Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the length of the development
cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built. It also has to forecast the costs to complete
on such developments,

In making such assessments and allocations, lheie is @ degiee ol inherent eslimalion uncerlainty, in particular due to the need to take
account of future direct input costs, sales prices and lhe need to allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to retlect the overall
level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established intemal controls designed to effectively assess and
review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These assessments and allocations evolve over
the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins reflects these evalving estimates. Similarly, these
estimates impact the carrying value of inventory at each reporting date as this is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation
of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits}
The cost of the defined benefit gratulty plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the

determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-

term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds, The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

(vii.) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

(viii.) Leases

(c.

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and the applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the
control of the lessee.

Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

The Property, plant and equipment (PPE') of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its current working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing
assets beyond its previously assessed standard performance.

Recognition principle:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition principle:
Gain/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit or Loss statement when the PPE is de-recognised.

VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(ii.) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated usefut life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual value not
exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction. Depreciation on
assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and development cost. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if considered
appropriate.

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

The Company has estimated the useful lives which is detailed as under for each category of PPE:

Name of Assets Useful Lives

Office Equipment 5 years

Plant & Machinery (P&M) A years

Furniture & Fixtures 10years

Computer and servers 5 and 6 years

Motor Vehicles 10 y=ars

Leasehold Improvements ___ Overthe primary lease period (10 years)
Aluminium panel used for construction (P&M) __ 4years

Temporary structure 1 year

(d.

~

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

(i.) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising from the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement when the intangible asset is
de-recognised.

(i.) Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on the
Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit and loss
statement unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life
is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to
finite is made on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representing computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of five years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carrying amount as
its deemed cast on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

(e.) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right ta control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

—

The Company as a Lessee:

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease companents of the contract
and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

(i.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-
use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use
asset, whichever is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant
and equipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

VSP‘]‘ 'Sl C?_ Page 8 of 44
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the [ease payments made. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term
of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

(i.) The Company as a Lessor:
At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattemn reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor's net
investment in the [ease.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease and recognises lease income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

(iii.) Transition
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which supersedes the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective from the financial year beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
using the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application
(i.e., April 1, 2018). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on 1 April 2019.

Refer note 2(e) — Significant accounting policies — Leases in the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019,
for the accounting policy pursuant to Ind AS 17.

(.

Impairment

—

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit
loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i.) Non-financial assets (Tangible and intangible assets)
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the camying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

-~

(g.) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Barrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost till such time
the property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or sale.
Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. However, the Company does not normally
suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative work. The Company also
does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the nature of industry, is a necessary part of the
process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or sale. Page 9 of 44
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(h.) Foreign Currency Translation

G-

(ii.

(k.

—

The Company's financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation.

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the settlemenl of monetary items or on reporting Company's monetary items at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as
expenses in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., franslation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including borrowing
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable vaiue.
Cost includes expenses, net of taxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property intended for sale.
The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties include the cost of land, internal development costs, external development
charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower of cost/estimated cost
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Revenue Recoghnition

The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related services,
maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”using the
cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties,
in writing, to the contract, the parties to contract are committed to perform the irrespective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control over the promised products or services (“performance obligations™)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products
or services (‘transaction price"). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resalved.

Vo & —
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaged in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are salisfied.

(i} Identify the Contract with Customer
The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
- All parties have approved the agreement (may be written)
- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.
- Each party’'s rights are identifiable.
* The contract has commercial substance,
- Collectability ie probable.

(ii.) Identifying the performance obligations
The Company evaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whether they are ‘distinct’. A promised good or
service is 'distinct’ if both:
- the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
- it is ‘separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or customizing it)

(ifi.) Determining the transaction price
The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amounts, existence of any financial
component and any other non-cash consideration, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that corresponds directly with the value to the customer of
the performance completed to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

(iv.) Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance obligations on the basis of their standalone selling price. For
services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach.

(v.

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over time, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligations by transferring
the promised goods or services to its customers.

The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

- Development Management Services.

- Sales Commission.

Revenue from sale of residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer. The properties have generally no alternative use for the company due to contractual restrictions. Enforceable
right to payment does not arise until legal title or posession of the property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Therefore,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer or pocession of property is deemed to have
been passed lo the customer. Each unit of the flats or propertles are classified as a separate performance obligation and revenue is
recognised upon legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pocession of property is deemed to have been passed to the customer.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the process of
construction and does not involve any significant financial component.

The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component. In the view of
the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as there is no
difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in paragraph 61 and 62 of
Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.

Income from sale of services

Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent the
services have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and recoveries are
reasonably certain.

Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units
Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are reasonably
certain.

Other income

Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income and gain/loss on investments. Interest income is recognized on accrual basis
using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established by the reporting date,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Page 11 of 44
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(L)
(i)

(ii.)

Taxes on income

Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Cumment income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or lass is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset Is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

(m.) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

(i)

(ii.)

(iii)

(n.

-—

(i.

[

(ii.)

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss
statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable under the scheme.

Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

Compensated Absences

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering the entilements outstanding as
at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts inciuded in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a coresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Financlal Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading
in other comprehensive income.

VSPY & =
T el Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(iii.) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(iv.))

(v.

(vi.)

{o.

(p-

(a-

{r.

(s.

(t.

~

-

-

)

—

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemnal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief
operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which primarily comprises of
development of real estate projects , both residential and commercial.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
statements of the Company as a whole.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premlum, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained eamings are adjusted for the following:

- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability-comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
and the return on plan assets

All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general
meeting prior to the reporting date.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Investments

Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements. Investment in
preference shares in Associates and mutual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) at the reporting date.

Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA') notifies new standards or ammendments to the existing standards. There were no such new
standards or ammendments which have been notified or made applicable with effect from 01 April 2020.

7 ”‘[)“‘,r s __C,_f_)-.—
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3

3.1

Property, plant and equipment

Tangible assets
Particulars Plant and Office Equipment Leasehold Computers Fumiture and
Equipment Improvements Fixtures

Deemed Cost

As at April 1, 2021 128.16 43.99 132.86 17.34 46.51
Additions - 3.37 - 2.67 -
Disposals/adjustments (0.22) - - (8.56) -
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 127.95 52.36 132.86 11.43 46.61
Additions - - - 3.08 -
Disposals/adjustments (121.39) - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 6.66 52.36 132.86 14.48 46.51
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2021 64.03 40.41 74.76 13.12 31.61
Charge for the year 28.88 2.54 14.51 1.13 3.90
Disposals/adjustments (0.20) - - (8.13) -
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 92.70 42.95 89.27 6.13 35.51
Charge for the year 17.42 2.14 14.51 2.25 2.45
Disposals/adjustments (103.95) - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 6.18 45.09 103.78 8.38 37.96
Carrying amount (net)
As at April 1, 2021 64.13 8.58 58.10 4.19 14.90
Additions - 3.37 - 2.67 =
Disposal (0.01) - - (0.42) -
Depreciation (28.88) (2.54) (14.51) (1.13) (3.90)
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, 35.24 9.41 43.59 5.30 11.00
Additions - - - 3.06 -
Disposal (17.44) - = - -
Depreciation (17.42) (2.14) (14.51) (2.25) (2.45)
As at 31 March 2023 0.38 7.27 29.08 6.10 8.54
ol ¥y - ——
Chartere&Acmuntan(S

Temporary Vehicles

Structures

0.28
0.08

0.36
0.08

0.44

Total

375.32
6.04
(8.62)
371.74
3.U8
(121,39)
253.41

224.21
51.04
(8.34)
266.91
38.85
(103.95)
201.83

151.11
6.04
(0.44)
(51.04)
104.83
3.06
(17.44)
(38.86)
51.58
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment

Other Intangible Assets B

Particulars Computer
Soft\tare Total

Deemed Cost
As at April 1, 2021 31.06 31.06

' Additions - -

. Disposal - -
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 31.06 31.06
Additions 4.39 4.39
Disposal - -
As at 31 March 2023 35.45 35.45
Accumulated depreciation -

. As at April 1, 2021 23.14 23.14
Charge for the year 1.98 1.98

| Disposals/adjustments - -

" As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 25.12 28,12

. Charge for the year 2.27 227
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at 31 March 2023 27.39 27.39

| Carrying amount (net) ‘

+ As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, 5.94 5.94
As at 31 March 2023 8.06 8.06

0.1 Right of Use Assets (Rol)

Particulars ROU Total

Deemed Cost
As at April 1, 2021 252.27 252.27
Additions 11.50 11.50
Disposal - =
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 263.77 263.77
Additions = &

| Disposal - -

! As at 31 March 2023 263.77 263.77
Accumulated depreciation
As at April 1, 2021 82.84 82.84
Charge for the year 44.86 44.86
Disposals/adjustments - -
As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, ; 127.70 127.70
Charge for the year i 45.36 45.36
Disposals/adjustments 4 - =
As at 31 March 2023 173.06 173.06
Carrying amount (net)

As at March 31, 2022/ April 01, : 136.08 136.08
As at 31 March 2023 90.72 | 90.72

VSPV & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4 Investments As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
4.1 Non-current
(i) Investments in equity instruments carried at cost
Unquoted equity Instruments
Investment in Subsidiaries (refer note 4.2 below)
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited - wholly owned subsidiary (refer note 4.2.below) 1.66 1.66
Investment in Assoclates
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1,894 1,894.00
[10,00,000 (2022.10,00,000) Eyuily 3liates ul Rs10 gddl, issued al @ premium ul Rs 189.40/-]
Darshan Nirman Private Limited 0.25 0.25
[2,500 (2022: 2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]
Pranati Niketan Private Limited 0.25 0.25
[2,500 (2022:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each]
1,896.16 1,896.16
(ii} Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares
Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (Refer Note 4,3. below) 662.00 662.00
[5.,00,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2023]
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
(Initial Cost : Rs.500 lakhs)
662.00 662.00
2,558.16 2,558.16
4.2 As at 31 March 2023, the group has deficit in equity funds of AED 24,363,104 due to significant delays in -commencement of the project. Although
accumulated losses amounted to more than 50% of the group’s paid up share capital, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the group will continue as a going concern. The management regards the group as going concern for the following reasons:
e The real estate market of Dubai has improved as compared to last year.
* The group successfully launched its project “Exquisite Living Residences”. towards the end of Lhe year.
e Opened an ESCROW account with a lacal bank during the year.
» The group has managed to avail services from marketing partner for collecting sales proceeds and other related charges from the customers.
» The marketing partner has initiated the procedure of signing of Sales & Purchase agreement.
» The group has appointed main contractor for the project and construction activities will commence from the first quarter of 2023-24.
+ The group has obtained final design approval, building permit certificate and demarcation certificate from local authority.
« The group has registered the project with local authorities.
« The shareholders and Joint venture partners have resolved not to dissolve the company as required by U.A.E Federal Law No. 32 of 2021, as amended and
continue its operations availing funding from the banks and or venture capital against the securities of the parent entities.
« As per the revised forecast prepared by the management, the operating and financial performance are positive and profitable.
= The beneficial owners have full confidence in the successful completion of the project and have agreed to provide required financial support.
¢ The existing creditors and lender of unsecured loans have agreed to extend their support till the completion of the project.
» Key executive management is in place with the group and its parent entities and upon commencement of the project additional
» There are no changes in government legislation that may adversely affect the group.
Considering the above, the Management of the Company is confident that carrying value of investement and Loans given to subsidiary as stated in Note 5
are fully recoverable and hence no provision for impairment in the carrying value of the investment in this subsidiary or adjustments in respect of the carrying
value of loan is considered necessary by the Management of the Company in the standalone financial statements.
4.3 Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajphumi Nirmaan Private Limited, an
associate. These investments in shares does not satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are optionally convertible into equity shares and their dividends are
linked to profits earned. Accordingly, the Company has classified these investments in shares at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The fair valuation
for this purpose was carried by an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants.

VSPV & Ce:
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5 Loans As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
Non - Current
Loan to subsidiary (carried at amortised cost) (also refer note 4.2) 21,732.13 15,719.58
21,732.13 15,719.58
5.1 Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to the related parties
Unsecured Loan to Zuari Infraworld Middle East Limited, Dubai, a wholly owned subsidiary is to meet working capital requirements of that company and
carries interest rate of 15% per annum (which is changed from 14% till FY 2019-20 to 15%). These loans along with interest are repayable in equivalent
Indian Currency with thrar year maratariim far payment of internat and principal from the dnte of disbursement. Thoco loane are expected to be rolled ovor
along with Interest dues for turther penod and hence calssified as non-currcnt, For detallcd schedule of repayment lenns 1efer lable below.
Details of loan and date of Loan Repaid during the Fair value Fair value of loan as Due Date of Amount
disbursement Amount year adjustment at 31 March 2022 repayment disbursed
(In foreign
Currency)
Loan 2 - 03 May, 2017 287.14 - 309.85 596.99 02 May, 2023 AED 18.09
Loan 3 - 12 Jul, 2017 35.58 - 36.66 72.23 11 Jul, 2023 AED 2,00
Loan 4 - 16 Aug, 2017 458.90 - 462.84 922.74 15 Aug, 2023 AED 26.00
Loan 5 - 25 April, 2018 240.18 = 202.26 442 44 23 Apr, 2024 AED 13.19
Loan 6 - 23 May, 2018 187.67 = 154.78 342,45 21 May, 2024 AED 10.00
Loan 7 - 25 June, 2018 283.67 - 228.19 511.86 23 Jun, 2024 AED 15.20
Loan 8 - 21 Sept, 2018 20.00 - 15.03 35.03 19 Sep, 2024 AED 1.00
Loan 9- 24 Oct, 2018 1,095.12 - 801.50 1,896.62 22 Oct, 2024 AED 54.00
Loan 10 - 03 April, 2013 15.00 - 9.60 24.60 01 Apr, 2025 AED 0.80
Loan 11 - 25 April, 2019 500.00 - 313.85 813.85 23 Apr, 2025 UsD 7.04
Loan 12- 19 July, 2019 200.00 - 116.29 316.29 17 Jul, 2025 usD 2.86
Loan 13- 31 Oct, 2019 1,100.00 = 579.35 1,679.35 29 Oct, 2025 USD 15.49
Loan 14 - 04 May, 2020 175.00 = 75.84 250.84 04 May, 2023 UsD 2.31
Loan 15- 13 May, 2020 1,300.00 - 557.72 1,857.72 13 May, 2023 USD 17.23
Loan 16 - 27 Aug, 2020 1,000.00 - 378.57 1,378,57 27 Aug, 2023 USD 13.51
Loan 17 - 04 Nov, 2020 200.00 = 69.34 269.34 04 Nov, 2023 UsD 2.67
Loan 18 - 06 Nov, 2020 300.00 = 113.57 413.57 06 Nov, 2023 USD 4.04
Loan 19- 24 Nov, 2020 170.00 - 58.94 228.94 24 Nov, 2023 USD 2.29
Loan 20 - 11 Dec, 2020 330.00 - 124.93 454.93 11 Dec, 2023 USD 4.48
Loan 21 - 02 Feb, 2021 135.00 - 41.34 176.34 02 Feb, 2024 USD 1.85
Loan 22 - 24 Mar, 2021 27.75 - 7.89 35.64 23 Mar, 2024 USD 0.38
Loan 23 - 06 May, 2021 200.00 = 53.14 253.14 05 May, 2024 USD 2.71
Loan 24 - 31 May, 2021 750.00 - 181.26 941.26 30 May, 2024 USD 10.33
Loan 25- 29 Oct, 2021 1,038.00 - 199.69 1,237.69 19 Oct, 2024 USD 13.86
Loan 26 - 29 Mar, 2022 2,328.40 - 309.39 2,637.79 28 Mar, 2025 USD 30.63
Loan 27 - 06 Jun, 2022 250.00 26.67 276.67 05 Jun, 2025 USD 3.22
Loan 28 - 23 Sep, 2022 200.00 13.31 213.31 22 Sep, 2025 USD 2.47
Loan 29 - 23 Oct, 2022 i 200.00 11.15 211.15 22 Oct, 2025 USD 2.43
Loan 30 - 31 Oct, 2022 ] 840.00 44.42 884.42 30 Oct, 2025 USD 10.18
Loan 31 - 29 Nov 2022 1,300.00 55.36 1,355.36 28 Nov, 2025 USD 15.91
Loan 32 - 289 Mar, 2023 1,000.00 1.02 1,001.02 28 Mar, 2026 USD 12.14
Total 16,168.41 - 5,563.72 21,732.13
6 Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
6.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)” 31.00 31.00
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 1.02 2.40
32.02 33.40
6.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)” 36.39 29.99
Interest accrued and due - Others (refer note 8.6. below)* 33.72 33.72
Interest Accrued but not due on deposit with bank 98.69 99.46
Advance to employees* 12.14 6.35
Expenses recoverable (refer note 6.4 below) 2,134.55 499.68
Deferred revenue expenditure (refer note 6.5 below) 1,950.53 1,950.53
Unbilled Revenue - Service Co (Refer Note 6.3 below) 909.24 438.56
5,175.26 3,058.30
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
VSPV & Ce.
Vol ¥ = ——
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6.3 Includes service income accrued and not billed as at the reporting date to related parties;
2uari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE - Development Management fees 900.00 300.00
Zuari Industries Limited, India - Sales Commission and Development Management fees 8.24 38.56
908.24 338.56
6.4 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE 1,977.22 342.36
2,134.55 499.68
65 Expenditure incurred against various projects under preview, revanue from thase projacts will b accruing in coming years
7  Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
71 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds carried at fair value through profit or loss = =
Unrealised gain on Investment in preference shares carried at fair value through profit or loss 45.07 45.07
Lease liabilities (1.09) (1.09)
Timing differences on benefit obligations through OCI < -
Others
Financial liabilities and assets carried at amortised cost;
- Interest on preference shares e ]
43.98 43.98
7.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets 36.83 36.83
Provision for employee benefits obligations 16.48 16.48
MAT Credit Entittement - -
Others 113.81 110.67
167.13 163.99
Unused Tax Losses 857.39 140.52
Less: Not considered for deferred tax purposes (857.39) (140.52)
-123.15 -120.01
Also, refer note 28 for other tax related disclosures.
7.3 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
7.4 As the management expects that the interest on Non convertible cumulative redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a deduction, the income tax

impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the initial recognition was in Other Equity.

untants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

8 Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good

8.1 Non-Current

Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note 8.3 below) 639.61 639.61

Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 8.5. below) 277.46 223.46
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable 5.76 5.76
Service tax - refund receivable 10.35 10.35

Less: Provision towards scrvice tax refund -10.35 (10.35)
922.82 868.82

8.2 Current

Advance to vendors {refer note 8.8. below) 2,392.32 2,451.90

Goods and Services tax input credit {refer note 8.4. below) 199.50 212,81
Prepaid expenses (refer note 8.7. below) 90.00 130.58
2,681.82 2,795.28

8.3 Includes advance payments made by the Company under the Development Management Agreement to agencies which are entitied to certain percentage of
income calculated in the manner specified therein. The advance payments made aggregated to Rs. 639.61 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (2022: Rs. 639.61
lakhs) and these will be adjusted in the year when the agency becomes entitled to share of income as per the agreement. One of the operating creditors of
one of the Agency company has initiated insolvency proceeding against that Company. The Management has currently initiated legal proceedings and is
pursuing recovery through arbitration and other legal means with that party. The management does not expect any significant effect of the same on it's
carrying balance and expects to adjust/recover the same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary at this stage.

8.4 Goods and Service Tax Input credits carried in the books includes input tax credits aggregating to Rs. lakhs 20.53 lakhs (2022: 14.12 lakhs) relating to
advance payments to vendors and unpaid vendors bills beyond time period stipulated under GST Law, which will be claimed in the returns in the subsequent
periods when the company is eligible to claim such credits under the provisions of the GST Law.

8.5 Represents Goods and Service Tax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund. The Company has filed the refund application and
expects to realise the same in full.

8.6 Includes recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor amounting to Rs.2,246.49 lakhs (2022: Rs 2,246.49 lakhs). The Management is in negotiation with
that party for its recovery including interest accrued Rs.33.72 lakhs (2022: Rs.33.72 |akhs) as disclosed in Note 6.2 The Management has currently initiated
legal proceedings and is pursuing recovery through arbitration and other legal means with that party, and is optimistic that this advance will be completely
recovered by the Company. Hence in the view of the Management no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

8.7 Includes Rs.79.48 lakhs (2022: Rs.117.46 lakhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid te an agency for services, on gross sale consideration
receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such commission is refundable by the agency. The
commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as and when revenue is recognised on a proportionate basis.

9 Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Completed units ( Refer Note 9.1. below) 519.21 519.21
Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land, Borrowing Cost and Project Construction 21,488.32 27,405.97
and Development Cost) (Refer Note 9.2, below)
22,007.53 27,925.17

9.1 Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers, amounts received against
these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 19. Pending receipt of balance consideration, if any and
effecting the transfer of legal title/deemed handover of the property, the same is reported as Inventory.

9.2 Includes Rs.1,950.53 lakhs (2022: Rs.1,950.53 lakhs) bsing cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s. Zuari Indstries Limited which is pending
formalising the terms and conditions. These balances are subject to confirmation from that party however, the Management of the company expects these
costs to be recovered in full and during the previous year it is transferred to Expenses recoverable Refer Note No. 6.5

9.2 The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of the project which is

determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including escalations and cost overrun). This review by the
management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying value of project work-in-progress was required and external
valuation was not considered necessary by the Management. In respect of early stage projects, the underlying fair value of land based on valuation report of
chartered engineer was considered for the purpose of determining the net realisable value and the carrying value of the construction work-in-progress was
found to be less than the net realisable value so ascertained.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Trade receivables

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Unsecured, Considered Good

101 Current
Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 10.2. below) 833.77 804.68
Trade receivables - others* o 73.45 1.032.46
907.22 1,837.14
10.2 Receivables from the related parties;
Zuari Global Limited 48.16 71.09
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02
Zuari Infra SJM Properties LLC, Dubai 56.84 176.77
Zuari Infra Middle East Limitcd, Dubai 319.69 145.44
Paradeep Phosphates Limited 5.06 5.08
Zuari Farmhub Limited ~ 2.30
833.77 804.63
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 6 months -1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
months
Undisputed Trade receivables 370.84 - 132.36 - 404.02 807.22
— considered good
10.3 The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables from related parties, accordingly no allowance towards non recovery is
considered necessary by the Management.
10.4 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other

receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

*Subject to confirmation.

11 Cash and bank balances

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalent
Balances held in banks in current account
Deposits held with banks with other than lien marked more than 3 months but less that 12 months maturity period*

Other earmarked balances held with bank
Deposits held with banks with more than 3 months but less that 12 months maturity period*

5,221.55 577.71
328.22 594.03
24,542.29 23,417.76
30,092.06 24,589.50

Note: The above balances held with banks are as per the statement of account obtained from that bank.

*Rs. 24,542.29 (2022 Rs. 23,417.76)Deposits held with banks under lien in favour of Yes Bank Limited, GIFT City for providing finance facility to Zuari SJM

Properties LLC, Dubai, a step down subsidiary.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

12 Share capital As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
124
(i) Authorised
5,00,00,000 (2022:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00
1,50,00,000 (2022:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
6,500.00 6,500.00
(i) Issued, subscribed & paid up
5,00,00,000 (2022:4,65,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 5,000.00 4,655.00
1,14,50,000 (2022:1,14,50,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable 1,145.00 1.145.00
Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued at premjum of Rs. 90 each.
(Also, refer note 12.7. below )
5,145.00 5,800.00
12.2  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
(shares of Rs. 10/- each) Nos. Amount (Rs.) Nos. Amount (Rs.)
At the beginning of the year 4,65,50,000 4,655.00 4,65,50,000 4,655.00
Issued during the year 34,50,000 345.00 - =
Outstanding at the end of the year _5,00,00,000  5,000.00 4,65,50,000 4,655.00
12.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at 31 March 2023
Name of the Shareholder As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
~_Nos. %holding ~ No's. % holding
Zuari Industries Limited, the Holding Company 5,00,00,000 100% 4,65,50,000 100.00%
(Including 10,000 equity shares jaintly held)
Note: As per the records maintained by the Company including the registers of members/ shareholders, the above share holding represents
both legal and beneficial ownership.
12.4 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:
Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per
share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares are entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of the equity shares held by the Shareholder.
12,5 The company has not issued any securities convertible into equity/preference shares.
12.6 For the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared :
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
No shares were bought back.
12.7 There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.
12.8 There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares,
12.9 Shares held by promoters at 31 March, 2023
No. of % Change during the
Promoter Name Shares %of total shares year
Zuari industries Limited, the Holding Company ;
(Including 10,000 equity shares jointly held) 5,00,00,000 100%
Shares held by promoters at 31 March, 2022 )
Promoter Name Shares %of total shares year
Zuari Industries Limited, the Holding Company .
(Including 10,000 equity shares jointly held) 4,65,50,000 100%
Refer Note 14.6 below for details of Cumulative Compulsarily redeemable preference shares issued by the Company.
12.10 During the year issued of 34,50,000 (Thirty Four Lakhs and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at

a premium of Rs. 48/- (Rupees Forty Eight only) to Zuari Industries Limited.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

13 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
13.1 Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:
Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares 562.11 562.11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares (146.15) (146.15)
47596 47596
Also refer note 14.6 below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
13.2  Security Premium Account:
As at the beginning and end of the year 10,305.00 10,305.00
Add : Addition during the year 1,656.00 -
11,961.00 10,305.00
Opening balance of security premium represents premium on issue of cumulative compulsarily redeemable preference shares. During the year
issued of 34,50,000 (Thirty Four Lakhs and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of Rs.
48/- (Rupees Forty Eight only) to Zuari Industries Limited.
13.3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement

As at the beginning of the year, 11.93 (264.52)
Add: Profit for the year before OCI (2,666.32) 268,31
Add: Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans, not reclassified to profit or loss* - 8.15
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (2,654.39) 11.93
9,722.57 70,732.39
*The Remeasurements gains in respect of employee benefits included above are as under;
As at the beginning of the year. 12.41 13.18
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (1.07)
Income tax effect on above 0.30
12.41 12.41

Balance carried forward

Cherter>d Accous tants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

141 Long-term borrowings:
(i) Secured Loans

Term Loans from others:

LIC Housing Finance Limited (refer 14.3 below) 16,525.92 18,466.60
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 17.1 below) -4,851.00 =
IIFL Wealth Management Limited 4,999.64 3,003.25
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited (refer note 14.7 below) 9,000.00 -
25,674.56 21,469.85

(i)  Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties (refer note 14.4 below)
Inter-Corporate Deposits from others

Zuari Global Limited (carried at cost) 151.80 6,814.13
Zuari International Limited 16,780.97 7.693.53
Adventz Securities Enterprises Ltd 719.42 707.60

17,652.19 15,216.26

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1,145.00 1,145.00
(Also, refer note 14.6. below)

44,371.75 37,830.77
14.2 Short -term borrowings:
(i) Secured Loans
Barclays Bank PLC 9,004.00 9,561.58
9,004.00 9,561.58
Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from (refer note 14.4. below)
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited (carried at cost) 804.23 753.86
Adventz Finance Private Limited (carried at ¢ (Refer Note No.14.4(ii)) 1,747.16 1,503.02
Addies Innovations Pvt Ltd - 139.49
Matheson Bosanquet Enterprises Pvt Ltd 1,025.35 507.58
Sanjana Cryogenic Storages Ltd 304.62 500.00
Toshniwal Brothers (SR) P Ltd 203.12 -
Raibareilly Flour Mills P Ltd 134.33 -
Art Rubber Industries Ltd 302.89 -
Deepa Bagla Financial Consultants P Ltd 500.94 -
Estrela Batteries Limited 150.71 =
5173.34 3,403.95
14,777.34 12,965.53

Chart arod Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14.3 LIC Housing Finance Limited

Term loan facility of Rs.20,000 lakhs for takeover of outstanding loan of Rs.13,000 lakhs from Federal bank limited and as a top up for
construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase I, Il & {ll project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 36 months moratorium for
repayment of principal from the date of first disbursement with right to accelerate payment based on the review of cash flows. This loan is
secured by equitable mortgage on the Land and Building to be constructed under project name 'Zuari Garden City' in area measuring to 50
Acres and 35 Guntas (excluding sold units), Project receivables and further secured by Corporate Guarantee issued by Zuari Global Limited,
the Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which are in ordinary course of
business. The loan outstanding as at 31 March 2023 is Rs.11,866.94 lakhs (as at 31 March 2022 : Rs. 15,094.56 lakhs).

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line Scheme sanctioned limit of Rs.3,250 lakhs to construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase [, Il & Il
project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 12 months moratorium for repayment of principal from the date of first disbursement
and the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2023 is Rs. 2,585.68 lakhs (2022:Rs, 3,250.00).

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line Scheme 2.0 sanctioned limit of Rs.2,028 lakhs to construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase |, Il & lll
project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 24 months moratorium for repayment of principal from the date of first disbursement
and the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2023 13 Rs. 2,028.00 lakhs (2022:Nil).

14.4 Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties
(i)  Zuari Industries Limited, Holding Company
Unsecured term loan from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company to meet the working capital needs of the Company. The unpaid loans
which was due for payment during the year was rolled over and renewed for a further period up to 31 March 2025, without any changes to the

existing terms and condition, detailed as under.

Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Outstanding Loans during Repaid Interest Outstanding Due Date*

31 March the Year accured and 31 March 2023

2022 due (including interest
(including accured)
interest

Loan at 8% p.a. 1,072.99 - 1,072.89 - = -
Loan at 12% p.a. 1,035.18 - 1,035.18 - = -
Loan at 15% p.a. 4,705.96 1,032.40 5,589.36 2.81 151.80 31-Mar-25
Total 6,814.13 1,032.40 7,697.53 2,81 151.80

* Due dates after considering rollover/ renewal during the year.

(i) Adventz Finance Private Limited
During the year Additional loan for working capital purpose of Rs. 200 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a group company carries
interest rate of 12.5% p.a. The loan along with interest is due in 11 months i.e. 30th April 2023 and accordingly disclosed under current
liabilities. The loan outstanding including interest accruals as at 31 March 2023 is Rs.1,747.16 lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.1,503.02 lakhs).

14.5 Other Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits

Unsecured short-term inter corparate deposits from the following parties to meet working capital requirements of the Company, The details of
the same is given below.

Party Name Amount Amount Repaid Rate of interest Date / due date Interest Accrued and As at 31 March 2023
borrowed during the year for Repayment not due (including accrued
during the interest)

Texmaco Infrastructure & Repayable on BN

Holdings Limited - - 16.75% demand 304.23 804,23

Addies Innovations Pvt Ltd - 135.00 16.00% 27-Mar-23 - -

Matheson Bosanquet

Enterprises Pvt Ltd 1,000.00 500.00  16.00% 02-Aug-23 25.35 1,025.35
Sanjana Cryogenic Storages

Ltd 300.00 300.00 16.00% 06-Jun-23 4.62 304.62
Toshniwal Brothers (SR) P Ltd 200.00 20000  16.00% 12-Oct-23 3.12 203.12
Raibareilly Flour Mills P Ltd 130.00 , 130.00.  16.00% 31-May-23 4.33 134.33
Art Rubber Industries Ltd 300.00 300.00  16.00% 07-Jun-23 2.89 302.89
'Deepa Bagla Financial

Consultants P Ltd 500.00 500.00  17.00% 29-May-23 0.94 500.94
Estrela Batteries Limited 150.00 150.00  17.00% 19-Jun-23 0.71 150.71
Total 2,580.00 2,215.00 346.19 3,426.19
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14.6 Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at As at As at
premium Rs 80 per share 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

At the beginning of the year 1,14,50,000 1.14,50,000
Issued during the year - =
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000
Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Non-Convertible Cumnulative Redeemable Preference As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022

Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per share. In No's In % In No's In %

Mr. Saro] Kumar Poddar 85,00,000 T74% 85,00,000 74%
Texmaco Infrastructurc & Holdinga Limitcd 29,50,000 26% 29,50,000 26%

Rights, preferences & restrictions attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of 8.5% per
annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 08 Dec 2024 (70,00,000 Shares), 30 July 2025 (15,00,000 Shares) and 31 March
2027 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. The Company has extended the redemption period of 15,00,000 preference shares which was due on
31 March 2025 to 30 July 2025, These shares are redeemable at a price band of Rs 125 - Rs 150 per preference share. During the year the
Company has extended the redemption period of 29,50,000 preference shares which was due on 31 March 2022 to 31 March 2025, these
share are reedmable at a price band of Rs. 200 - Rs. 270 per preference share. Each holder of preference shares is entitled to one vote per
share on resolutions placed before the company.

Pursuant to Schedule Ill of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Financial Instruments, Non-
convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares which are seftled in cash needs to be classified as ‘financial liability' and not 'equity’.
Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering the effective interest rate (EIR) at 14% and the
portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting to Rs.1,145.00 lakhs (2022 : Rs.1,145.00 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term Borrowings'
and the portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (2022 : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has been reported
under 'Other Equity'.

With respect to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no adjustments/
disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Iil of the Act, since such classification of
the 'securities premium account' into 'borrowings' or 'other equity’ will be inconsistent with the provisions of section 52 of the Act which
stipulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be utilised. Also the additional premium payable on the redemption has not
been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a liability will be violative of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts are required in
view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordingly, no adjustments as required under Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read
with Schedule lll of the Act are made in respect of the premium payable on redemption
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olherwise stated)

14.7 lIFL Wealth Prime Limited -Debentures
Secured, unrated and unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures (‘NCDs') aggregating to INR 9,000.00 lakhs comprising of 900 debentures of INR
10 lakhs each, bearing interest rate of 14.00% p.a. were issued by the Company during the year to IIFL Wealth Prime Limited.
This loan is secured by following:
(i) A first ranking exclusive pledge to be created over 85,00,000 of preference shares of the Company (“ZIIL Preference Shares"), held by Mr.
Saroj Kumar Poddar (“Promoter”) to ensure that a security cover is maintained at all times till the Debentures are redeemed in full, to the
satisfaction of the Debenture Trustee along with all rights, title, claims, demands, benefits and interests of the Company therein , in favour of
the Debenture Trustee, for the benefit of the holders of the Debentures (“Pledge”);
(i) A first ranking and exclusive charge by way of mortgage over Mortgaged Property (as more particularly described in Schedule hereto)
pursuant o the reirvant documents executed by Indian Furniture Products Limited ("Mortgagor”) in relation to creation of such mortgage in
favaur of Nehenture Trister ("Mortgage™);
(1) A flrst ranking and excluslve charge by way of hypothecation over all the present and tuture receivables ot the Company and all the nghts,
tile, interests, benefits, claims, proceeds, demands whatsoever or any part thereof of the Company in relation to such receivables
("Hypolhecaled Assets"), in lavour of the Debenture Trustee; ("Hypothecation”)
15 Lease Liabilities As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
15.1 Non-Current
Lease Liability 119.18 190.00
119.18 190.00
15.2 Current
Lease Liability 76.82 67.52
76.82 67.52
195,99 257.52
15.3 Other Notes on leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has been
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on April 1, 2019.

During the year ending March 31, 2022 the company has changed the terms in the investment resuiting in changed in opening balance of "Net

The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning* 230.82 464.71
Finance cost accured during the year 28.47 40.45
Payment/payable towards lease liabilities B9.89 85,48
_Adjustment of change in terms of lease agreement 0.00 178.85 ¢
Balance as at the end 169.29 230.82

*excluding refundable rent deposit of Rs.26.70 carried at amortised cost.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(i.) The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
Particulars As at March 31 For the year ended
2023 March 31,2022
Less than one year 95.71 89.99
One year to five years 99.64 195.36
more than five years - -
Total 195.35 285.35
(ii.) The movement in net investment in sublease is as follows:
Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at the beginning - 187.19
Changes in opening balance due to change in terms - 0.00
‘Interest income accured during the year . - 4.57
Lease receipts - 9.37
Adjustment of change in terms of lease agreement - 192.39
Balance as at the end - 0.00
16 Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
16.1 Non-Current
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 245.29 245.29
Due to others - non current (carried at cost)*
245.29 245.2%
*Dues to related parties (carried at cost) ~
16.2 Current
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and sms refer note 16.4. below 0.51 0.51
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro refer note 16.3. below 1,249.16 1,522.55
- 1,249.67 1,523.06
*Includes dues to related parties (refer note 16.3) - 3.48
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME _ - - - 0.51 0.51
previous year | - - 0.51 - 0.51
(i) Others £689.09 188.29 117.87 500.42 1,494.96
previous year 1,052.27 178.05 165.79 372.23 1,767.84
SPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16.3 Includes retention money Rs.131.23 lakhs (2022 : Rs.131.23 lakhs) and other trade payables Rs.25.48 lakhs (2022: Rs.25.48 lakhs) to one of
the sub contractors in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with party for full and the final setlement. The said balance is subject
to confimation from that party.

16.4 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 based on
the information available with the Company are as under:

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act 0.51 0.51
Interest accrued and due to suppliers on above amount 0.09 0.10
Payment made to suppliers beyond appointed day during the year 0.00 1.34
Interest paid to supplicrs during the year -
Interest due and payable to supplisrs towards payment already made during the year 0.78 0.80

* Balances are subject to confirmation

17  Other Financlal Liabllitles As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

17.1 Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)

Current maturity of long term loans (refer note 14) 4,851.00 )
Refundable deposit (refer note 17.2 below) - 1,500.00
Other Deposits 14.96 14.96
Due to employees 198.19 197.11
Due to related parties (refer note 17.3 below) 7212 13.56
Due to others 0.44 0.44
5,136.71 1,726.07

17.2  Refundable deposits received from M/s. Mathias Construction Private Limited for the proposed development of land/property owned by Zuari
Agro Chemicals Limited in respect of which Zuari Infraworld India Limited will acguire the right of lease of the land/property. During the year
deposit is refunded as proposed development of land is cancelled.

17.3 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;

Mr. Alok Banerjee 57.11 8.00
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal 13.87 4,37
Ms. Nishu Kakkar = 1.18
Dayanand G S 1.14 -

7212 13.56
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
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18 Provisions As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
18.1 Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits;
Provision for gratuity obligation 29.99 42.60
Provision for compensated absences 4.83 11.31
34.82 53.91
18.2 Current
Provision for employee benefits;
Provision for gratuity obligation 21.17 1.54
Provision for compensated absences 327 0.50
2443 2.04
Also, refer note 36 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
19  Other liabilities As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current
Statutory dues 320.58 200.94
Advances from customers relating to;
- Completed units pending registration or transfer of pocession 500.37 50037
- Construction work-in-progress 3,943.56 7,310.22
- Maintenance charges 9.19 9.19
- Other customer advances (refer note 19.1 below) 1,516.14 1,881.24
Advances from related party =
5,289.33 5,501.96
19.1 Includes advances of Rs.482.46 lakhs (2022:Rs.341.72 lakhs) in respect of cancelled residential units in respect of which the Company is in

negotiation with parties for selling units of other projects against which these amounts are expected to be adjusted and Rs. 323.01 lakhs (2022:
Rs.323.01 lakhs) collected from the buyers towards club membership charges fees which will be adjusted against the expenses incurred in this

regard.
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
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(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20 Revenue from operations For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Sale of residential units 6,375.11 3,996.22
Development management fees & Expenses recovered 800.00 2,393.58
Sales commission on sale of plots/residential units 41.41 51.37
7,216.52 5,441.18
21 Other income For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank 1,417.77 841.78
Inter-Corporate Deposits to subsidiary 2,222.55 “1,471.60
Income tax refund 12.86 -
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund - 61.79
Unwinding of financial liability - 125.80
Finance Guarantee Commission - 56.84
Other miscellaneous income 5.01 1.80
3,658.20 2,559.62
22 Project construction and development expenses For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation on assets - Projects 17.42 28.83
Civil Work 1,301.62 2,089.92
Site Office Expenses - 52.53
Project Staff Costs - 237.62
Rework expenses charged to profit and loss 20.22 44.39
1,339.26 2,433.34
Add: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress 452.40 2,419.83
Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progres 100.50 237.38
Add: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress 20.66
Less: Recovery of cost transferred to Expenses recoverable (1,950.53)
1,892.16 3,160.69
23 Changes in construction work-in-progress For the year For the year
ended ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Completed units of stock

Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 115 519.21 883.35
Completed units at the end of the year 519.21 519.21
Changes in completed units during the year - 364.14
Construction Work-in- progress
Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year 27,406 30,042
Add: Construction cost incurred during the year (refer note 22) 1,892.16 3,160.69
Less: Cost of Projects (4,837.60) (3,293.91)
Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories (2,951.98) (1,235.20)
Less: Recovery of cost incurred towards project manged by holding company (1,223.18)
Less: Rework expenses charged to profit and loss -20.22 (44.39)
Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year 21,488.32 27,405.97
Changes in construction work in progress 5,917.65 2,636.00
Less: Changes in WIP related finance cost 2,951.98 1,235.20
2,965.66 1,400.80
Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+b) 5,917.65 3,000.14
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24 Employee benefit expenses For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 616.46 492.51
Contribution to provident and other funds 48.54 22,20
Gratuity 8.28 10.84
Compensated absences (1.60) (3.06)
Staff welfare expenses 20.09 13.43
691.76 535.93
Less: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progre: (100.50) (237.38)
591.26 298.54
25 Finance costs For the vear Far the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 5,061,46 4,355.97
Interest on dues to micro & smail enterprises 0.09 0.08
Interest on lease liabilities (Refer note 15) 28.47 35.85
Finance cost transferred from inventories 2,951.98 1,235.20
Interest on non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares - 36.41
8,042.00 5,663.53
Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress (452.40) (2,419.83)
7,589.60 3,243.70
26 Depreciation and amortization expenses For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 38.86 51.04
Amortisation of intangible assets 2.27 1.98
Amortisation of right-of-use-assets 45.36 44.86
86.50 97.87
Less: Depreciation transferred to construction work-in-progress (17.42) (28.88)
69.08 68.99
27 Other expenses For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rent 1.32 1.12
Travel and conveyance 31.88 20.40
Legal and professional fees 61.87 47.33
Communication and intemet charges 3.53 2.65
Office Expenses 27.87 20.44
Repairs and maintenance 16.05 13.69
Auditors remuneration 10.25 9.65
Recruitment expenses, net 0.32 =
Advertising and publicity 43.97 57.05
Rates and taxes 36.83 212
Commission & Brokerage 54.27 75.08
Loss on financial assets measured at fair value - 5.00
Loss on sale of fixed assets 0.49 -
Maintenance and Security 73.81 64.11
Maintenance charges* 66.58 37.84
Insurance 2.28 10.12
Directors sitting fees 1.10 1.20
Asset restatment balance - 3.32
Miscellaneous expenses 1.74 0.22
Balances no longer required, net 2.06 15.55
436.22 386.90
Less: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress - (20.66)
436.22 366.23
271 Remuneration to Auditors' reported above includes
Statutory Audit Fees 7.15 7.15
Tax Audit Fees 0.83 0.83
Certification fees 2.27 1.68
10.25 9.65
VSPV & Co.
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28 Income Tax For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Income tax expense - 96.50
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (2.93) (267.10)
(2.93) (170.61)
281 Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit For the year For the year
ended ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Profit before tax - 97.70
Income tax expense calculated at 27.82% (2022:27.82%) - 27.18
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shares - (11.52)
Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rate - (227.25)
Other adjustments - (55.52)
Income tax expense - 96.50
- {170.61)

28.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted In changes In

For the year

For the year

deferred tax are as follows: ended ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2022
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds - (227.25)
Unwinding of security deposit paid
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) -
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible a: 3.11) (5.68)
Unwinding of security deposit received
Temporary differences on benefit obligations (4.06) 4.12
Fair valuation of investment in Preference shares (11.52)
Other adjustments (2.47)
Gain on sale of flats recognised as per Ind AS 115 8.73 (20.22)
Lease Liabilties (4.50) (0.94)

{2.93) (263.96)

VSPV & Co.
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29

29.1

29.2

30

30.1

30.2

Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:
Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:
Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 investments
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Dubai UAE 100% 100% At Cost
Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:
Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at | account for
Incorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 !  Investments
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25% At Cost
Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% At Cost
Pranati Niketan Private Limited India 25% 25% At Cost
Note: As at 31 March 2023 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and 50% of Pranati Niketan
Private Limited.
Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)
Particulars March 31 2023 March 31 2022
Dividend on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 536.63 536.63
Tax demand for defaults under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal of 635 6.28
Income tax welbsite, against which company s in the process of filing rectification.
Customer claims not acknowledged as debt by the Company 71.30 55.98
Total 614.29 598.91
Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to Rs.

1,301.62 lakhs (2022:Rs.4,127.09/- lakhs).

VSPV & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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30.3 Pledge of assets:

31

The Company has given security by way pledge of feixed deposits held favour of Yes Bank Limited for extending financing facility to Zuari
SJM Properties LLC, Dubai, a Step-down subsidiary of the Company. The amount of finance facility extended is USD 305 lakhs (2022:
USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 48,176.10 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 76.47). As per latest sanction terms the above joint
corporate guarantee is removed.

(a) The company has also provided security by way of pledge of fixed deposits held in the 24,542.29 23,417.76

‘name of the Company (fair value as at reporting date) for the loan referred above.

Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic earttings per share (EPS) amounls are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to eguily hulders of he parent by the
weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares, accordingly the
Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS |
(No. of shares in absolute numbers)

Particulars March 31 2023 March 31 2022

Profit before OCI attributable to equity holders of the parent company (2,666.32) 268.31
\Weighted Average number of equity shares used for camputing EPS (Basic & Diluted) 4,78,77,.260 4.65,50,000
Earning/(Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) (5.56) 0.58
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00

Clmrtered Accoun tants
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32 Related Party Disclosures

32.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company:

Sl.

No

20

Name of the related party

Zuari Industries Limited
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE
Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, UAE (formerdy SJM Elysium
Properties LLC)
Burj District Development Limited, Cayman Islands
Burj District One Limited, UAE
Zuari Management Services Limited
Simon India Limited
' Forte Furniture Products India Private Limited
Zuari Finserv Limited (formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited)
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
Darshan Nirman Private Limited
Pranati Niketan Private Limited
Athar Sabab (appointed w.e.f. February 01, 2022)
' L M Chandrashekaran
Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director
Anshul Amit Bansal, Chiet Financial ofticer
Nishu Kakkar, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 11 November 2022)

Dayanand G 5C ompany Secretary (appeointed w.e.f, 23 December 2022

& re5ig_ned w.e.f. 28 April 2023)
Saro] Kumar Poddar

32.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

i Sl

No
1

2

3

4

5

7

‘Particulars

Service Charges / Management Fees Paid

Zuari Finserv Limited (Fermery known as Zuari Finserv Private Limited)
:Recovery of cost incurred towards project handled by

Zuari Global Limited

Service Charges / Management Fees Income

Zuari Industries Limited - Development Management Commission

Zuari Infra Middle East Limited- Development Management Commission
Zuari Industries Limited - Sales Commission

Zuari Infraworld SJM Praperties LLC - Finance Guarantee charges
Inter-Corporate Deposits Given- Asset

Zuari Infra Middle East Limited

- Given

Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability

Zuari Global Limited

- Accepted

- Repayment

Interest on ICD (Expenses)

Zuarn Industries Limited

.Interest on ICD given - Income (incl. adjustment on amortisation)
‘Zuari Infra Middle East Limited

{ 10 |Zuari Agro transaction

|
i

1"

'Rental Income
Reimbursement of Expenses received/receivable
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited

Chartered Accountants

Nature of relationship with the Company

Holding Company
Subsidiary
Step down Subsidiary

Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary
Subsidiary of the Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries
Associates

Associates

Associates

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Managerﬁent Personnel

Director of halding company

Year ended
31 March 2023

900.00
41.41

3,790.00

1,032.40
7.697.53
533.72

2,222.55

1,634 B6

Year ended
31 March 2022

0.45
1,223.18
70.40
300,00

16.37
56.84

4,316.40
15,265.80
18,077.36

1,227.52

1,471.60 |

9.37

69.83
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32.3 Compensation paid to Key management personnel compensation:
Sl. Particulars
‘No
1 Short-term employee benefits
Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer & Director
Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 19 Novenber 2022)
Dayanand G § Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 23 December 2022
& resigned w.s.f. 28 April 2023)
2 'Retirement benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity)
‘Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer
‘Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer
fNishu Kakkar Company secretary {resigned w.e.f 19 Novenber 2022)
Dayanand G S Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. 23 December 2022
& resigned w.e.f. 28 April 2023)
3 | Sitting fees
 Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Directors

‘Total compensation

32.4 Year-end balances
Sl. ;Particulars
No '
1 Other payable

'Alok Banerjee
Anshul Amit Bansal
Nishu Kakkar Company secretary (appointed w.e.f. 20 February 2020)
Trade receivable
2uari Infra Middle East Limited
Zuari Infra SIM Properties LLC
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited
i Zuari Industries Limited
Paradeep Phosphates Limited
3 :Expenses Recoverable

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

{Zuari Industries Limited

Zuari Infra Middle East Limited
4 Loans to related parties
Zuarn Infra Middle East Ltd. {including interest accrual)
Loans from related parties:
‘Zuari Industries Limited
Other year-end balances
(a) Service Income accrued and not billed
Zuari Infra Middie East Limited
Zuari Industries Limited

N

(&)

[+

32.5 Other Year end balances
Zuarl Infra Middle East Limited
(i) Pledge of fixed deposits held in the name of the Company

32.6 Terms and conditions

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the normal

course of business.

VSPV & Co.
VSPV &

Chartesed Accountants

Year ended
31 March 2023

134.54
37.20
3.01
222

26.84
6.61
0.27
0.24

212.03

As at
31 March 2023

57.11
13.87

319.69
56.84
404.02
48.16
5.06

157.33
1,950.53
1,977.22

21,732.13

151.80

900.00
8.24

24,542.29

Year ended
31 March 2022

76.06
30.42
4.08

25.70
5.48
0.32

1.20

144.27

Year ended
31 March 2022

8.00

4.37
1.18

145,44
119.93

404.02 .

7.29
157.33
1,950.53
41.75
15,719.58

6.:814.13

23.46

23,417.76
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33

33.1

i)

(i)

(i)

33.2

U]

(i)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company's senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk govemance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Estate (Regulation and Developmant) Act, 2016 (RERA).

Markot rick

Market risk is the nsk that the tair value ot future cash ttaws at a tinancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In market
prices. Market risk compnses three types of n$K: interest rate nsk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowIngs, deposits and investments in mutual
funds.

Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term
Loan facility from LIC Housing Finance Limited and Yes Bank Limited is subject to floating rate of interest based on MCLR, while
the borrowings from the related entities carry interest at a fixed rates.

Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding Increase/ Effect on profit
Loan facility decrease in before tax
subject to basis points

floating rates
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Increase in base points 16,525.92 +50 B82.63
Decrease in base points 16,525.92 -50 (82.63)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Increase in base points 18,466.60 +50 92.33
Decrease in base points 18,466.60 -50 (92.33)

Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net investments in
foreign subsidiaries.

Equity price risk
The Company's non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credlt risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial
instruments.

Trade receivables

Sale of units (Villas/ Villaments & Apartments):

Customer credit risk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

Development Management Fees:

Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes
dues from these activities aggregated to Rs.900.00 lakhs (2022: Rs2,393.58 lakhs)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its customers

are related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the
realisation.

Chartered Accountants
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33.3 Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is direcly monitored by CFO of the company .
The Campany'’s objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares,

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company Is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters.

The management also obtained consent from the preference sharehalders for extension of the redemption of preference shares
which are due for redermplion on 31 Maich 2020, These preference shates die now due fui iedemplion on 30 July 2025,

33.4 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2023:

Particulars Ondemand <3 month 3to12months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings 804.23 1,329.96 7.911.56 47,458.34 1,145.00 58,649.10

(Incl. Debt portion of
Preference Shares)

Trade payables 84.27 268.64 726.57 75.73 338.75 1,494.96
Lease liabilities = 23.91 71.80 99.64 - 195.35
Other financial liabilities = 122.12 163.59 - 1,500.00 1,785.71
Total 888.50 1,744.63 8,873.53 47,633.70 2,984.75 62,125.11

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2022:

Particulars Ondemand <3 month 3to12months 1to3years > 3 years Total

Borrowings 753.86 647.08 10,061.58 38,188.13 1,145.00 31,915.87 !
‘(Incl. Debt portion of
Preference Shares)

Trade payables 49,70 45,81 1,073.83 447,31 151.70 1,701.20 .
Lease liabilities % 14.57 43.71 199.23 - 557.67
Other financial liabilities - 63.56 162.51 - 1,500.00 1,138.43
Total 803.55 ¢ 771.01 11,341.64 38,834.67 : 2,796.70 35,313.17

VSPV & Co.
e
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34 Fair values

(i)

(ii.)

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments

Financial Assets
Particulars Carrying value
As at 31 March 2023  As at 31 March 2022

* Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Quoted mutual funds - 4,083.93
Preference Shares held in Associate Company 667.00 667.00
Financial assets at fair value

Interest accrued and due 33,72 33.72
Interest accrued and not due 98,69 99.46
Expenses Recoverable - Related parties 2,134.55 499,68
Unbilled Revenue - Service contracts 909.24 438.56
Net investment (sub-lease) - -
Security deposits 31.00 31.00
Loan to Subsidiary 21,732.13 15,719.58
Trade Receivables 907.22 1,837.14
Cash and bank balances 30,092.06 24,589.50
Advance to employees 12,14 6.35
Financial assets carried at cost

Investments in Associate 1,8986.16 1,896,16
Security deposits 37.41 33.03
Total 58,551.32 49,935.12

Financial liabilities
Particulars

Financial liabilities at fair value

Carrying value
As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2023

LIC Housing Finance Limited 16,525.92 18,466.60
Preference shares (debt portion) 1,145.00 1,145.00
Security deposit towards sub lease -26.72 -26.72
Inter corporate deposits 22,825.53 18,619.21
Current maturity of long term loans 4,851.00 v
Refundable deposit - 1,500.00
Lease liability including current portion 195.99 257.52
Other payable to related parties 7212 13.56
Other deposits 14.96 14.96
Dues to employees 198.19 197.11
Trade payables 1,495.40 1.768.79
Total 47,297.39 41,956.02
Other Notes:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter carporate
deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a.) The fair values of the unguoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash
outflow in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the
model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates within the
range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at the
end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36 Fair Hierarchy

(i)

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets  observable inputs  unobservable inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)
Preference shares held in Associate 667.00 - - 667.00

Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.

(i.) There have been no lransfers belween Level 1 and Luvel 8 during Une yeur.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

36  Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

Current Non-current Current
Value of Plan - Gratuity (Un-Funded) 2117 29.99 1.54
Gratuity:

As at 31 March 2022

Non-current
42.60

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on

departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

(i.) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

Particulars

Current Service Cost
Net Interest Cost
Expense recognised in profit and loss statement

(ii.) Actuarial (gain)luss on vbligation:
Particulars

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)ltoss from chanae in financial assumptions
Experience (gains) / losses

‘Total actuarial (gain)/loss

(iii.) Other comprehensive income
Particulars

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the period
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI)

(iv.) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contribution paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations
i Defined benefit obligation

As at
31 March 2023
6.92
2.90
9.83
As at
31 March 2023
(0.45)
2,18
1.73
As at
31 March 2023
1.73
173
As at
31 March 2023
28.89
6.92
2.90
1.73
40.44

As at
31 March 2022
7.91
2.94
10.84
As at

31 March 2022

(v.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

{Particulars
Mortality
Interest / Discount Rate

Rate of increase in compensation

Expected average remaining service

Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Employee Attrition Rate (Past Service)

As at
31 March 2023
IALM (2012-14) Ult.
7.45%
5.00%

14.28
Rs. 20 Lakhs
PS: 0to 18 years : 3%
PS: 18 to 30 years : 2%
PS: 30 to 42 years : 1%

e & Co.
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(8.04)
(7.06)
(15.09)
As at
31 March 2022
(15.09)
(15.09)
As at
31 March 2022
33.14
7.91
2.94
(15.08)
23.89
As at

31 March 2022
IALM (2012-14) UIt.
6.70%
5.00%

14.54
Rs. 20 Lakhs
PS: 0to 18 years : 3%
PS: 18 to 30 years : 2%
PS: 30 to 42 years : 1%
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(vi.) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

(vii.) The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

37

Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary Increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
impact en defined benefit obligation 47.76 55.15 55.13 47.72
Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2022

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 37.40 43.79 43.78 37.37

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

‘Particulars As at ‘ As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 '
‘Within the next 12 months 21.17 1.54
Between 2 and 5 years 4.90 20,75 :
‘Between 5 and 10 years 7.94 6.51
Total expected payments 34.00 28.79

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector as its reportable
segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects, including
leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business has been
considered as a single operating component by the Management.

37.1 The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company's operating segments as at year end:

Geographical information Non-current assets Revenue from operations
As at As at faor the year ended for the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
India 1,196.32 1,235.88 6,316.52 6,141.18
Outside India (Dubai) - = 900.00 ' 300.00
1,196.32 1,235.88 7,216.52 6,441.18
Note:

Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets, post-
employment benefit assets etc.

37.2 Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 ! 31 March 2022
Customer A = =
Customer B - u
Customer C - -
Total - -

Note:
There are no customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures has
been made in this regard.
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38 Ratios
The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Particulars Numerator Denominator 31st 31st
March March Varian
2023 2022 ce

a) Current Ratio, Current assets Current liabilities 2.26 244 -0.18
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, Total Debt ' Shareholder's Equity 3.98 330 0.68
(c) Debt Service Coverage Earning avilable Debt Service ‘ 0.66 1.05 -0.39
Ratio, for Debt Service
(d) Return on Equity Ratio, Net Profits after  Shareholder's Equity -0.18 0.02 -0.20
taxes
i(e) Inventory turnover ratio, Cost of Goods . Avg. Inventory 0.0s Qo8 oM
I Suld i
'(f) Trade Receivables Revenue Average Trade 328 348 -0.20
‘turnover ratio, Receivable
i(g) Trade payables turnover Purchases of Average Trade 1.62 153 0.10
‘ratio, services and Payables
other expenses
(h) Net capital tumover Tumover Net Assets 0.74 0.58 0.15
\ratio,
(i) Net profit ratio, Net Profit Revenue -0.25 0.01 ' -0.26
i(j) Retumn on Capital Eaming befare  Capital Employed 0.08 0.06 0.02
‘employed, interest and :
taxes
(k) Retum on investment.  Income Time Weighted - 0.01 -0.01
Generated from average investments
Investments

Chartered Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39 Disaggregation of revenue

Particulars For the year ended 31 March 2023 For the year ended 31 March 2022
I - i India Outside India India Outside India

|Sale of residential units - 6,375.11 - 3,996.22 ' -
\Development management fees T 800.00 - 2,393.56 -
Sales Commission on sale of plots/residential units ‘ 41.41 - 51.37 -
Total o ] 7,216.52 - 6,441.18 | -

40 Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation and
management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management none of
the assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation in the ordinary course of business than the amount
at which they are stated in these financial statements.

Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29-40
The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the standalone financial statements

per our report attached For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

L Zuari In rld India Limjted
o Co. \ \
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Vikas Gupta, FCA Cha ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR S ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Membership No.200924 Director & CEQ Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891

VSPV&ECo

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQN6767

Page 44 of 44



VSPV & Co

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Membets of Zuati Infraworld India Limited
REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Zuati Infraworld India Limited
(“hearinafter called as “Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries listed in Annexure I, which comprises
the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other comprehensive income) and consolidated statement of changes in equity and cash flow
statements for the year then ended, and notes (o the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. (hereinafter referred to as
“the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner
so requited and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of consolidated
loss, consolidated changed in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards ate further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
teport. We are independent of the Group and its associates in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opiniof.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER PARAGRAPH

® We draw your attention to the note 2(d) of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March 2023 regarding consolidated report of foreign wholly owned
subsidiary in Dubai, UAE with accumulated losses which exceeds its net worth as at the end of
the year. However, as per the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March
2023 of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, the said subsidiary, the Management has considered
that Company as a going concern for the reasons listed in the specific note given.

VSPV & Co.
Chartered Accountants

# 8,2nd Main. 9th Cross, Indiranagar, Ist Stage, Bangalore ~-960 038, India
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® We draw your attention to the note 7.3 of the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31% March 2023 regarding advance payments of Rs. 639.61 lakhs made by the
Company under the Development Management Agreement to agencics against which the said
agenl initated insolvency resolution proceedings. The Management has currently initiated legal
proceedings and is pursuing recovery through arbitration and other legal mcans with thal party.
The management does not expect any significant effect of the same on it’s carrying balance and
expects to adjust/recover the same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary
at this stage.

® We draw your attention to the note 7.5 of (e uccotpunying consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31" March 2023 regarding recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor
amounting to Rs.2,246.49 lakhs including interest to Rs.33.72 lakhs. The Management has
currently initiated legal proceedings and is pursuing recovery through arbitration and other legal
means with that party and is optimistic that this advance will be completely recovered by the
Company. Hence in the view of the Management no provision is considered necessary at this
stage.

The consequent adjustments, if any, in the carrying value of the assets and equity deficit will be
made upon completion of valuation as mentioned above.

Our opinion is not modified on the above matters.
OTHER INFORMATION

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directots are responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors
report but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s repott thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or out knowledge obtained in the audit ot otherwise appears to be
matetially misstated. If, based on the work we have petformed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repott in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) that
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates in accordance with the accounting
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principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting recotds in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of apptoptiate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
intetnal financial controls, that were opetating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting rccords, rclevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot etror, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the
Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concetn basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and
jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and
of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot etror, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes out opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or etror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an undetstanding of intetnal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedutes that are appropriate in the citcumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for exptessing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
VSPV & Ca.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, we can conclude that there is no material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events ot conditions may cause the Company to
cease to conitinue as a going concetn.

» TEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
mannecr that achicves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other mattets, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

OTHER MATTER

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of one subsidiary, which consists of itself, it’s
subsidiary, one joint ventute and a subsidiary of that joint venture, all of which are incorporated outside
Tndia, whose consolidated financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 76,275.47 lakhs as at 31st March
2023, total revenues of Rs. 1,364.68 lakhs and net cash outflows amounting to Rs. 1,270.39 lakhs for the
year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These consolidated
financial statements of the subsidiary have been audited by the auditors of that subsidiary.

The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs 6.19 lakhs for the
year ended 31st March 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three
associates to the extent recognised as detailed in Note 4.1, whose financial statements have not been
audited by us. These financial statements of the associates have been audited by the auditors of those
associates.

The reports of the auditors of the subsidiary and associates as mentioned above, have been furnished to
us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and associates, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaties and
associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

7SPV)S Co.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 143(3) OF THE ACT, WE REPORT THAT:

@

(®)

@

©

®

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
Consolidated Financial Statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as requited by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement, the consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Repott are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 201.

On the basis of the written reptesentations received from the ditectors as on 31st Match, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding company and the tepotts of the
statutory auditors of its associates companies incorporated in India, none of the directots is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of intetnal financial controls over financial repotting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate repott in
Annexure A.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repott in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has complied with the provisions of section 197 of the Act is to the extent applicable
with respect to managerial remuneration paid duting the year and this is subject to approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing annual general mecting.

()

@

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditot’s Repott in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group and its associates— Refer Note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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(i)

(i)

i

0

(i)

Provision has been made in the consolidated financial statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts.

‘T'here were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its associate companies incorporated
in India.

The management has represented that other than those disclosed in the nhotes to
accounts,

no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested by the company to or in any other
person(s) or entilies, indudiug foreign eulities (“Internediaties™), with the unders (anding
that the intermediary shall whether directly or indirectly lend or invest in other petsons or
entities identified in any manner by ot on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of ultimate beneficiaties.

no funds have been received by the company from any petson(s) or entities including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”) with the understanding that such company shall
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other petsons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate beneficiaries) ot
provide guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaties.

Based on the audit procedures performed, we report that nothing has come to our
notice that has caused us to Dbelieve that the above representations given by the
management contain any matetial mis-statement

T Vel
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Mcmbership No.200924
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Annexure referred to in Clause (g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requitements” of our Independent Auditors Report of even date on the Consolidated financial
statcments of Zuari Infraworld India Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2023.

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-
SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2023, We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repotrting of
Zuari Infrawotld India Limited (hereinafter refetred to as “the Holding Company™)

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding company and its associate companies, which atc
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely prepatation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAT and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be presctibed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intetnal financial conttols, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requite that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and petform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their opetating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an undetstanding of internal financial
controls over financial rcporting, asscssing the risk that a material weakness cxists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Mattets paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external putposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pettain to the maintenance of tecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.

@ provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthotised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements due to
etror or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intetnal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies ot procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Holding Company which is incorporated in India has, in all material respects,
adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial conttols
over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control
over financial reporting ctitetia established by the Company including basis of allocating expenses to
various projects considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

VSPW & Co.
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OTHER MATTERS

Out aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to three associate companies,
which are companies incorpotated in India, is based on the cotresponding reports of the statutory
auditors of such companies ihcorporated in India.
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Annexure - 1

List of entities included in the Consolidated financial statements fot the year ended 31 March

2023:

Zuati Infra Middle East Limited, UAE

| Wholly owned subsldlary

 Zuari Infraworld STM Properues LLC, UAE

| Blajbhunn Nirmaan Private Litnited

| Pranati leetan Prlvate L]mlted

Step Down Subsidiary

| Associate

Associate

Associate

_ ‘_____Sul_)sldl_ary of Asspclate
i Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

D1v1ne Realdey Prlvate Llrmted

Beatle Agencies Private Limit Llrmted

Suhana Properties Prlvate Lumted

‘Kushal Tnfrapmperty Private Ll.m.lted B

Subsidiary of Associate
Subsidiary of Associate

_ ¢ Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

Subsidiary of Associate

_ “Saket Mansions Pr1vate Llrmted -

Subsidiary of Associate
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amournits in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Note As at As at
No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
' Non-current assets
(a.) Property, plant and equipment 31 180.45 156.51
(b.) Olher intangible assets 3.2 8.06 5.94
(c.) Right-of-use assets 33 90.72 136.08
(d.) Goodwill on consolidation 58.75 58.75
(e.) Financial assets:
(i.) Investments 4 2,930.14 2,936.33
(ii.) Other financial assets 51 33.40 33.40
(f.) Deferred tax asset (nel) 6 123.91 120.98
(g.) Other assets 7.1 5,721.72 5,253.76
9,147.15 8,701.73
Current assets
(a.) Inventories 8 65,660.53 64,063.19
(b.) Financial assets
(i.) Trade receivables 9 530.69 1,514.92
(ii.) Cash and cash equivalents 10 6,756.70 3,480.02
(iii.) Bank balances other than (i) above 49,858.11 23,417.76
(iv.) Other financial assets 5.2 2327.99 2,421.39
(c.) Income tax assets (net) 165.89 140.96
(d.) Other assets 7.2 2,951.31 2,947.46
1,28,261.22 97,985.70
1,37,398.37 1,06,687.44
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a.) Equity share capital 1" 5,000.00 4,655.00
(b.) Other equity 12 2,483.02 5,875.99
7.483.02 10,530.99
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 1341 74,442.17 67,712.36
(ii.) Lease liabilities 141 119.18 170.46
(iii.) Trade payables 15.1
total oulstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 91.30 91.30
(b.) Provisions 171 34.82 53.91
(c.) Deferred tax liability (net) 18 =
74,687.46 ©8,028.02
Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabilities
(i.) Borrowings 13.2 14,271.68 12,993.50
(ii.) Lease liabilities 14.2 76.82 87.06
(iii.) Trade payables 16.2
total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises 0.51 0.72
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enlerprises 2,186.65 1,719.63
(iv.) Other financial liabilities 16.1 6,952.04 3,344.66
(b.) Other liabilities 19 31,643.07 9,933.53
{c.) Provisions 17.2 97.13 49.33
55,227.90 28,128 .44
1,37,398.37 1,06,687.44

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of the consolidaled financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuari Infraworld India Limited

Vikas Gupta, FCA ALOK BANERJEE . ATH R SHAHAB ANSHUL . BANSAL
Membership No.200924 Director & CEO Director Chief Financial Officer
Pariner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01624891

Chartered Accountants

Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQO4140
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Al Amourits In Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

Note For the year ended

For the year ended

No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations 20 6,316.52 8,141.18
Other income 21 2,789.87 1,486.14
Total Income 9,116.39 7,607.32
EXPENSES:
Purchase of materials, sub contract charges and other project costs 22 9,407.14 7,608.92
Changes in construction work-in-progress 23 (4.549.32) (2,583.30)
Employee benefit expenses 24 597.81 303.25
Finance costs 25 7.591.17 3,243.70
Depreclation and amorlizalion expense 26 94.16 90.31
Other expenses 27 598.48 459.94
Total expenses 13,739.44 9,022.83
Loss before share proflt/(loss) In assoclates and tax vxp (4,623.05) (1,416.61)
Loss before share in net profit/(loss) of assoclates (6.19) (3.88)
Loss before tax expense (4,629.24) (1,419.39)
Tax expense 28
Cuirent tax expense 96.50
MAT Credit of earlier year
Deferred tax (2.93) (267.10)
Total tax Expense (2.93) (170.61)
Loss for the year {4,626.31) (1,248.78)
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign opcrations {422.66) (76.04)
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans (Gratuity) 11.29
Deferred tax on above defined benefit plans (3.14)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (422.66) (67.88)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (5,048.97) (1,316.67)
Earning per equity share (in Rs.) 30
Basic & Diluted (9.64) (2.68)
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Eamnings per share 4,79,77,260 4,65,50,000

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

per plir report attached

Vikas Gupta, FCA ' ALOK BANERJEE

Membership No.200924 Director & CEQ
Partner DIN: 01371033
VSPV& Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Dale : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQO4140

ATHAR SHAHAB
Director'y,
DIN: 01824891

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

o

pm ANSAL

Chief Financial Officer
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

I. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Profit for the year (4,623.05) {1,419.39)
Adjustments to reconcile profit and loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation & amortisation expense 111.68 119.19
Foreign currency translation reserve (422.68) (76.04)
Interest Income (1,418.33) (841.86)
Balances written-off - 15.55
Net gain on investments - (61.79)
Interest expense 9,160.66 6,746.55
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCI - 11.28
Adjustments for share of loss in subsidiary 6.18 3.88
Qperating Profit/(Loss}) before working Capital Changes 2,814.37 4,497.40
Adjustment for net changes in:
Trade receivables 984,23 (1,044.22)
Financial and other assets (385.37) (1,265.51)
Inventories (1,597.34) (1,348.09)
Trade payables 405.28 (137.24)
Provisions 28.71 5.70
Financial and other liabilities 25,316.92 (1,632.05)
Net cash generated from operations 27,566.81 (924.01)
Direct taxes paid ( net of refund incl. Inlerest on refund) (24.93) (91.13)
Net cash generated from operating activities 27,541.88 (1,015.15)
ll. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Additions to property, plant and equipment (109.23) (18.45)
Sale of property, plant and equipment 17 -
Proceeds {rom sale of Investments in Mutual Funds - 4,154,860
Fixed deposits with bank (98.60) (16,311.37)
Receipts from net investment in right-of-use assets - 10
Interest received 658.99 0.02
Net cash from Investing activities 468.10 (12,165.38)
lll. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Borrowings, net of repayments 4,568.99 19,801.67
Issure of equity shares 2,001.00
Interest Paid (including amount lransferred to work-in-progress) -5,721.67 -3,218.76
Net cash used in financing activities 848.33 16,682.81
Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year 28,858.31 3,402.38
Exchange difference on cash and cash equivalent -
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 3,480.02 77.64
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 10) 32,338.33 3,480.02
VSPV & Co.
O
Chartered Accountants
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ZUARIINFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
[All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as ded:
Particulars As at 31 March 2022 Cash Flow Trf. to Non-Cash Ad). |As at 31 March 2023

Securltles (Fair Value

Premium Adjustments)
Long term borrowings 18,670.60 18,466.60 - - 37,137.09
Redeemable Preference 1,058.66 - - - 1,058.66
| Shares (Debt portion)
Lease liabilities (including 257.52 - - - 257.52
security deposit received
for Net investment in sub
lease)
Short term borrowings 9,613.24 161.90 - - 9,775.14
Trade payables 1,817.03 466.81 - - 2,283.84
Other current financial - 9,933.53 475.58 - - 10,409.11
liabilities

Cash flows from operating activities are reported using the indirect method.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial its

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
ual awoid India Limited

Vikas Gupta, FCA ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB ANSHUL A, BANSAL
Membership No.200924 Director & CEO Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891

VSPV& Co

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQO4140
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ZUARIINFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note No As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A. Equity share capital 1 5,000.00 4,655.00
B. Other equity -
Securities Equity Retained OCl Reserve Total
preml Comp t of earnings (Forelgn
convertible Currency
preference Translation
] | shares reserve)

'Ealgn_ce as at 31 March 2021 | 10,305.00 415.96 (3,396.57) (131.74) 7,192.85
[Profil for the period | (1.246.78) (1,248.78)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations 8.15 8.15
| Adjusimenis for foreign currency translation | (76.04) (76.04)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 10,306.00 4156.96 | (4,645.35) {199.62) 5,875.99
Profit for the period (4,626.31) (4,626.31)
| Addition during the year 1,656.00 1,856.00

|Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations | -

| Adjustmenis for foreign currency translation (422.86) (422.68)
|Balance as at 31 March 2023 11,961.00 415.96 (9,271.66) (622.29) | 2,483.02
The accumpanying noles forms an integral part of lhe consolidated financial ts

Vikas Gupta, FCA
Membership No.200924
Partner

VSPV&E Co

Charlered Accountanls
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQO4140

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of
Zuan Infraworld India Limited

ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHA

Director & CEO
DIN: 01371033

Director
DIN: 01824891

X

Ak

ANSHUL A, BANSAL
Chief Financial Officer
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

1 Corporate information:

The Consalidated Ind AS financisl statements of Zuari Infraworld India Limited [CIN: U45309KA2007PLCO43161] and its Subsidiary
("hereinafier collectively referred as the "Company” [ the "Group”) and its associates are for the year ended 31 March 2023. The Company
Is domiciled in India and is Incorporated under the pravisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Group's primary business s pre-
dominantly into the business of developing long term real estate prajects (residential cum commercial property intanded for sale),

The consolidated financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors passed on meeting held
through video conference and other visual means (V) dated May 11, 2023.

2 Significant accounting policies:
(a.) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the group have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis excepl
for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) nolified under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accourting Standards) Rules, 2015 and in accardance with the reporting
requirement under Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), to the extent notified.

These Accounting policies have been carnsistently applied by the group in the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
except whera a newly issued( nalified accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy which was in use.

«Current and Non-current classification

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set
out in Schadule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, As the Company is engaged in Jeveloping a resldentlal cum commercial project, the
normal operating eycle is based on the Bme between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has ascertalned its operating cycle at least 12 manths after the reporting date for the purpose of Current - Non-
current classification of assets and liabilities, which is considerad appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all the amounts disclnsed in the financial statements have baen
rounded off to the nearest lakhs pursuant to the requirements of schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013., except when otherwise
indicated.

(b.) Basis of consolidation
The consalidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company, its subsidiaries, and its associates as at
31 March 2022, Control is achievad when the Group has power over the inveslee, is exposed, or has rights, to variable relums from its
invelvermnent with the entity and has the ability to affect those ratums through its power over the investee,

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
- Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policles for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. If a member of the Group uses -accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made lo thal Group member's financial statements in
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

{c.) Consolidation procedure

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following the below mentioned procedures:

(1.) Subsidiary has been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by combining together the book values of the like jlerns of assets, liabilities.
income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent wifh those of its subsidiary, offsetting {efiminating) the camying amount af the parent's
investment in subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary and after efiminating all significant intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or losses.

(2.) Interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the Associates over which the Group has significant influence but not control
have been consolidated using Equity method, Under the equity method of accounting , the investment in an assaciate is initially recognised
at cost and the carrying amount is Increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or Inss nf the nvestee afier the
date ot acquisition.

{3.) The difference of the cost to the Group of ils investment in Subsidiary over its proportionate share in the equity of the investee Group
as al the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may be, While in
the casa of Assodiates such Goadwill o Capital Reserve is adjusted to the carrying value of investments,

{4.) The intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, Income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
(including profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventary and fixed assets) are
eliminated in full. Intragroup losses indicating an impairment are recognised in the consolidated financial statements. Pursuant to Ind AS12
on Income Taxes the temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are
recognised.

VSPV & Co.
Chartered Accountants .
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ZUAR! INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(5.) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are altributed to the equity holders of the Parent Company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance, However the
minority interests has been restricted to zero on the transition dale i.e. April 1, 2015 using the exemplion provided by the Ind AS 101 and
the accumulated losses attributable to lhe minorities in excess of their equity on the transition date, in the absence of the contractual
obligation on the minorities, the same has been accounted for by the Parent Company.

(6.) The financial statements of the group entities used for the purpose of consolidalion are drawn up to same reporting date as that of the
Group i.e. year ended 31 March 2023.
List of Subsidiaries and Associates considered for consolidation:

(A) Following Wholly Owned Foreign Subsidiary has been consolidated on line by line basis:

"~ Name of théiéiréa;’ a "anl;tril;f Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited Dubai, UNE 100.00% 100.00%
The Information relating to the subsidiary of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited is given below
Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Zuari Infraworld SJM Propenties LLC UAE 100.00% 100.00%

(Refer Nate below)

Note: Shareholding in Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC includes 51% held by a nominee shareholder as per the Shareholders
Agreement dated 18 August 2014. As per the terms of this agreement Zuari Infra Middle East Limited has complete control over the
management and accordingly this Company has been considered as a subsidiary with 100% interest and thus consolldated. The pald up
share capital coresponding to the 51% interest has been included under other current liabilities, which is considered appropriate by the

Management.

(d.) Going Concemn

As at 31 March 2023, the group has deficit in equity funds of AED 24,363,104 due to significant delays in -commencement of the project.
Although accumulated losses amounted to more than 50% of the group’s paid up share capital, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on the basis that the group will continue as a going concem. The management regards the group &s
going concem for the following reasons:

» The real estate market of Dubai has improved as compared to last year.

* The group has appointed main contractor for the project.

* The real estate market of Dubai has improved as compared to last year.

* The group successfully launched its project "Exquisite Living Residences". towards the end of the year.

* Opened an ESCROW account with a local bank during the year.

* The group has managed to avail services from marketing partner for collecting sales proceeds and other related charges from the

= The marketing partner has initiated the procedure of signing of Sales & Purchase agreement.

* The group has appointed main contractor for the project and construction activities will commence from the first quarter of 2023-24.

* The group has obtained final design approval, building permit certificate and demarcation certificate from local authority.

* The group has registered the project with local authorities.

* The shareholders and Joint venture partners have resolved not to dissolve the company as required by U.A.E Federal Law No. 32 of
2021, as amended and continue its operations availing funding from the banks and or venture capital against the securities of the parent
entities.

* The beneficial owners have full confidence in the successful completion of the project and have agreed to provide required financial

» The existing creditors and lender of unsecured loans have agreed to extend their support ill the completion of the project.

* Key executive management is in place with the group and its parent entities and upon commencement of the project additional project
* There are no changes in govemment legislation that may adversely affect the group.

* Key executive management is in place with the group and its parent entities and upon commencement of the project additional project
* There are no changes in govemment legislation that may adversely affect the group.

* There are no changes in govemment legislation that may adversely affect the group.

(B) Following In in Associates have been consolidated using Equity Method of Accounting:
Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited * India 25% 25%
[ based on consolidated financial statements
including its subsidiaries is given below] |
Pranati Nikelan Private Limited India 25% 25%
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25%

* As at 31 March 2023, Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (2021: 50%) each in Pranati Niketan Private Limited and Darshan
Nirmaan Private Limited respectively.

The information relating to the subsidiaries of Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited (BNPL), an associate are given below:

VSPV &a CO. . Page 7 of 46
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Name of the Group

Rosewood Agencles Private Limited

Neobeam Agents Private Limited

Mayapur Commercial Private Limited

Nexus Vintrade Private Limited

Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited

Hopeful Sales Private Limited
Divine Realdev Private Limited

Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited

Beatle Agencles Private Limited

Suhana Properties Private Limited

Saket Mansions Private Limited

Name of the Group

Rosewood Agencies Private Limited

Neobeam Agents Private Limited

Mayapur Commercial Private Limited

Nexus Vintrade Private Limited

Bahubali Tradecomm Private Limited

Hopeful Sales Private Limited
Divine Realdev Private Limited

Kutshal Infraproperty Private Limited

Beatle Agencies Private Limited

Suhana Properties Private Limited

. Saket Mansions Private Limited

Country of
Incorporation Interest as at

31 March 2023

Share of Ownership

BNPL's share of
Ownership Interest as at
31 March 2022

Indla 100.00% 25.,00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
india 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%

1 India ] 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%

Country of Share of Ownership BNPL's share of
Incorporation Interest as at Ownership Interest as at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 ;
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100,00% 25.00%
India 100,00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
india 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
India 100.00% 25.00%
This space has been intentionally left blank
VSPV & Co.
-
Chartered Accountants
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

{d.}) Use of accounting estimates, accounting judgements, and assumptions:

Preparation of these financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. Such estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year.

The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjeclive judgments and the use of
such assumptions in these financial slalemenls have been disclosed in the ensuing notes, Accounting estimates could change from year
to year and also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as Management becomes
aware nf nhanges in rircumstances sirrniinding these estimates, Changes in estimates are reflerted in the financial statements in the year
in which changes are made and their effects, if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

Useful life of Property, plant & equipment:
The determination of estimated useful lives and expected residual values are based on the technical evaluation carried by the Company
and these are reviewed by the Management of the Company at each reporting date.

(i.) Impairment of financial assets and evaluation of impairment indicators:
The evaluation of applicability of impairment indicators for an assets requires assessment of several external and intemal factors which
could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets. As at the balance sheet date based on the historical default rates
absorbed over the expected useful life, the Management assess the fair value of various financial assets and liabilities and their resultant
fair values.

(iii.) Impairment of non-financial assets:

Impaimment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of fair value less costs of disposal is based on available data from
binding sales transaction conducted at amms' length for similar assets or observable market prices / guidance value less incremental cost
for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from budget for the future
years and do not include any restricting activities not committed for or significant future investments that will enhance the performance of
the assets of the CGU being tested. |he recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rates used for the DCF model as well as the
expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

(iv.) Contingencies:
Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company, including legal. By their
nature, contingencies will be resolved only when one or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the
existence, and potential quantum, of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgement and the use of estimates
regarding the outcome of future events, which may or may not occur.

(v.) Construction work-in-progress
The Company holds inventories stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Such inventories include land, work in progress and
completed units, Considering the nature of the activity and, in particular the scale of its developments and the length of the development
cycle, the Company has to allocate project-wide development costs between units being built. It also has to forecast the costs to complete
on such developments.

In making such assessments and allocations, there is a degree of inherent estimation uncertainty; in particular due to the need to take
account of future direct input costs, sales prices and the need to allocate project-wide costs on an appropriate basis to reflect the overall
level of development risk, including planning risk. The Company has established intemal controls designed to effectively assess and
review inventory carrying values and ensure the appropriateness of the estimates made. These assessments and allocations evolve over
the life of the development in line with the risk profile, and accordingly the margins reflects these evolving estimates. Similarly, these
eslimates impact the camying value of inventory at each reporting date as this is a function of costs incurred in the year and the allocation
of inventory to costs of sales on each property sold.

(vi.) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date. The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated
in India, the management considers the interest rates of govemment bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary
increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

(vli.) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.
Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(viii.) Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of ind AS 116 on Leases. Identification of a
lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals)
and lhe applicable discount rate. The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, logether with bulh
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain ta exercise that option; and periods covered by an
option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an oplion to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the
option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. The
discount rate is generally based on the incremental horrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics. The Company reassess the option when significant events or changes in circumstances occur that are within the
control of the lessee.

(e.

Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

The Property, plant and equipment ('PPE’) of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost comprises of the purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset ta its curent working condition for the intended use. Any discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase
price. Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increased the future benefits from the existing
assets beyond its previously assessed standard performance.

Recognition principle:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i.) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cusl of the ilem can be measured reliably.

De-recognition principle:
Gain/ (losses) arising from the de-recognition of a PPE are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carmying amount of the PPE. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit or Loss statement when the PPE is de-recognised.

(i.) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the Straight Line basis over the estimated useful life of the PPE after retaining estimated residual value not
exceeding 5% of the original cost, except for Leasehold improvements and aluminium panels used for construction. Depreciation on
assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and development cost. The residual values, useful lives and
methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if considered
appropriate.

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

The Company has estimated the useful lives which is detailed as under for each category of PPE:

Name of Assets Useful Lives

Office Equipment 5 years

Plant & Machinery (P&M) 8 years

Fumiture & Fixtures 10 years

Computer and servers 5 and 6 years

Maotor Vehicles 10 years

Leasehaold Improvemenis _Over the primary lease period (10 years)
Aluminium panel used for construction (P&M) i4 years

Temporary structure 1 year

(f.

Intangible Assets and Amortisation

(.

Intanglble Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, the intangible assets are
slated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of intangible asset is recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i) itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(ii.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

De-recognition:

Gain/ (losses) arising from the de recognition of intangibles are measured as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the intangibles. The resultant gain/(losses) are recognised in the Profit and Loss statement when the intangible asset is
de-recognised.

VSPV & Co:
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ZUARIINFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(i.) Amortisation

The useful lives of intangible assels aie assessed as either finile or indefinile. Inlangible assets wilh finite lives are amorlized on the
Straight Line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the
end of each reporting peried. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the profit and loss statement
unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but
are tested for impairment annually, cither individually or at the cash-gencrating unit Ievel. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made
on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets representling computer software is amortised on the straight line basis over a estimated useful economic life of five years.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had elected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAP carmying amount as
its deemned cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e., 1 April 2015.

{g.) Leases

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an idenlified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

(i.

The Company as a Lessee:

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract
and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at the lease
commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made al or before (he commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any
initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or
restoring the underlying asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lrase liability The right-nf-use assets is
depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset, whichever
is earlier. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment.
Right-of-use assels are tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental borrowing rate. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable
lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a
further reduction in the measurement ot the lease liabiity, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in
statement of profit and loss.

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 on Leases to shori-term leases of all assets that have a lease term
of 12 months or leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for buildings taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The
Company does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

(i.) The Company as a Lessor:
At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of ils leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. The Company
recognises lease payments received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over lhe lease term. In case of a finance
lease, finance income is recognised over the lease term based on a pattem reflecting a constant periodic rate of retum on the lessor's net
investment in the lease.

When the Company is an intemediate lessor it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising trom the head lease, not with reterence to the underlying
asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, then it classifies the sub-lease
ae an operating lease and recognises leasc income accordingly.

If an arrangement or contract contains lease and non-lease components, the Company applies Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with
customers to allocate the consideration in the contract.

VsSPV & Co
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(iii.) Transition
Minlstry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which supersedes the existing lease standard, Ind AS
17 Leases, and other interpretations. Ind AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases for both lessees and lessors.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective from the financial year beginning April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases,
using the modified retrospective method with cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, recognised on the date of initial application
(i.e., April 1, 2019). Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying
this standard has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings as on 1 April 2019.

Refer note 2(e) — Significant accounting policies — Leases in the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2019, for the accounting policy pursuant to Ind AS 17.

(h.} Impairment

Financial assets (other than at fair value)

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the
Company has used a practical expedlent by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit
loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the
receivables that are due and rates used in the provision matrix. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses arc measured at an
amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the
financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition.

(i.) Non-fir ial ts (Tangible and intangibl )
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability whenever there is any indication that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to which
the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) Is estimated to be Iess than its carmrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing
cost also includes exchange differences, if any to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost till such time the
property is ready for its intended sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or sale.
Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. However, the Company does not normally
suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative work. The Company also
does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the nature of industry, is a necessary part of the
process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or sale.

(i

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.

Initial Recognition:
Foreign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction/ realisation,

Conversion / Reinstatement:

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial
transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value denominalted in a foreign currency are, translated using the exchange rates that
existed when the fair value was determined.

Exchange Differences:

Exchange differences arising on the setllement of monelary ileins ot vn 1epuiling Cumpany'’s monelary ilems at rales different from those
at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses
in the year in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCI or profit and loss, respectively).

vSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(k.) Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprisc all costs of purchase including cost of land, costs of conversion and other costs including borrowing
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Inventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value,
Cost includes expenses, net of 1axes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property intended for sale.
The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities.

Construction work-in-progress of constructed properties Include the cost of land, intemal development costs, extemal development
charges, construction costs, overheads, borrowings cost, development/construction materials and is valued lower of cost/estimated cost
and net realisable value,

Neledlisable value is the estimaled seling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost ot completion and estimated
cost necessary to make the sale.

Provisions and Contingent Llabilities

(I

Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the profit and loss statement net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
linance cost.

(i.) Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that aiises fium pasl evenls whose exislence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probahle that an antflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingsnt liability also arices in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company dees not recognise a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

(m.) Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from development and sale of residential cum commercial properties and related services,
maintenance and consulting. Effective 1 April 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers"using the
cumulative effect transition method being applied to contracts that were not completed as of 1 April 2018.

Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties,
in wiiling, to Lhe contract, the parties to cantrart are committed to pertorm the irespective obligations under the contract, and the contract
is legally enforceable. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control over the promised products or services ("performance obligations”)
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company has received or expects to receive in exchange for these products
or services (‘transaction price"). When there is uncertainty as to collectability, revenue recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is
resolved.

To determine whether to recoanize revenue, the Company follows a five step model as envisaged in Ind AS 115 given below:
Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the fransaction price to the performance obligations

Recoanizing revenue when/as performance obliqation(s) are satisfied.

Identify the Contract with Customer

The Company evaluates whether a valid contract is satisfying all the following conditions:
- All parties have approved the agreement (may be oral or written)

- All parties are committed to approve their obligations.

- Each party’s rights are identifiable.

- The contract has commercial substance.

- Collectability is probabie.

(i.

(ii.) Identifying the performance obligations
The Company cvaluates the separability of the promised goods or services based on whelher lhey are 'distinct’. A promised good or
service is ‘distinct’ if both:
- the customer benefits from the item either on its own or together with other readily available resources, and
 itis 'separately identifiable’ (i.e. the Company does not provide a significant service integrating, modifying or customizing it)

VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(ii.) Determining the transaction price
The Company considers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction
price excludes amaunts collected on behalf of third parties. The consideration promised include fixed amaunts, existence of any financial
component and any other non-cash consideration, or both.

Where the Company has a right to consideration from a customer in an amount that comesponds directly with the value to the customer of
the performance compleled to date, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which it has a right to invoice.

(iv.) Allocating the transaction price to the perfortnance obligations
The transaction price is allocated to the separately identifiable performance abligations on the basis of their standalone selling price, For
services that are not provided separately, the standalone selling price is estimated using adjusted market assessment approach.

iafind

Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably
measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.

(v.

Revenue is recognized either at a point in time or over lime, when (or as) the Company satisfies performance obligalions by Iransferring
U prumised goods or services to its customers.

The main revenue streams for Zuari Infraworld India Limited relate are as under:
- Residential cum commercial properties (constructed properties)

- Development Management Services.

- Sales Commission.

Revenue from sale of residential cum commerclal properties (constructed properties)

The Company develops and sells residential cum commercial properties. Revenue is recognised when control over the property has been
transferred to the customer. The properties have gencrally no alternative use for the company due to contractual restrictions. Enforceable
right to payment does not arise until legal litte or posession of the property is deemed to have been passed to the customer. Therefore,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the legal title has been passed to the customer or pocession of property is deemed to have
been passed to the customer. Each unit of the flats or properties are classified as a separate performance obligation and revenue is
recognised upon legal transfer of asset to buyer or when the pocession of praperty is deemed to have been passed to the customer,

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In most cases, the consideration is linked with the process of
vunstucliun and does not Involve any slgnificant financlal component.

The Company has not adjusted the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component. In the view of
the Management of the Company, the contract with a customers would not have a significant financing component as there is no
difference between the promised consideration and the cash selling price of the residential units (as described in paragraph 61 and 62 of
Ind AS 115) had the same been sold on full cash basis.

Income from sale of services

Income from service contracts which is in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognised on accrual basis to the extent the services
have been rendered and invoices are raised in accordance with the contractual terms with the customers and recoveries are reasonably
certain.

Sales Commission from sale of plots/ residential units
Commission from sale of plots/ residential flats upon sale of the plots/ flats as per the terms of contract and recoveries are reasonably
certain.

Other income

Other income comprises of interest income, dividend income and gainfloss on investments. Interest income is recognized on accrual basis
using the effective interest method. Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established by the reporting date,
which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(n.) Taxes on income

(i.) Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities
using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Currentincome tax assets and liabifities are measured at the amaunt expected fa he racnvered fram or paid to the taxation authorities. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income: tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside protit or loss (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(i.) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is setlled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the camy forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax
losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
tempuiary dilferences, and the camy forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (gither in other comprehensive
income or in equity).

(0.) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined conliibution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit and Loss
statement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the contribution
payable under the scheme.

(i.) Gratuity
Gratuity liability under the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of actuarial
valuation on projected unit credit method, made at the end of each financial year. The gratuity liability is not funded.

(ii.) Compensated Absences
Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considering ihe entitlements outstanding as
at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial
year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements:

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability and the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
arc recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit v relained eainings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in subsequent periods. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liahility or asset.

(p.) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair vaiue measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business whose objective is to
hold these assets ta collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dales to cash
tlows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(i.) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

The Company has made an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of equity investments not held for trading
in other comprehensive income.

(i.) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in statement of profit and loss.

(iv.) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

(v.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contract (hat evidences 1esidual interest in lhe assets of the Company after deducting all of Its liabilities. Equity
instruments recognised by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received net off direct issue cost.

(vi.) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(q.) Eamings per Share
Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating
diluted eamings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares,

(r.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. Chief
operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which prmarily comprises of
development of real eetate projecte , both residential and commercial.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting financial
stalementls of Lhe Company as a whole.

(s.) Equity, reserves and dividend payments
Share capital represents the nominal (par) value of shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on issue of share capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained eamings are adjusted for the following:

- Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability-comprises the actuarial losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions
and the return on plan assets

All transactions with owners of the parent are recorded separately within equity.

Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general
mecting prior to the reporting date.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprises cash at bank and in hand and short term investments with an original
maturity periods of three months or less.

For the purpose of the Statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts if any as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

(u.) Investments

Investments in subsidiary, Joint Ventures and Associates are accounted at their cost in the separate financial statements. Investment in
preference shares in Associates and mutual funds are accounted for at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) at the reporting date.

(v.) Recent Accounting pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') nofifies new standards or ammendments 1o the existing standards. There were no such new
standards or ammendments which have been natified or made applicable with effect from 01 April 2021.

VSPV & Co
vsSpV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3 Property, plant and equipment
3.1 Tangible assets

Particulars

'Deemed Cost
| As at 01 April 2021
Additions
Disposal
Foreign currency transition differences
As at 31 March 2022/ D1 April 2022
Additions
Disposal
Foreign curency transition differences
As at 31 March 2023
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021
Charge for the year
Disposals/adjustments
| Foreign currency transition differences
' As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
' Charge for the year
1 Disposalsfadjustments
| Foreign currency transition differences
' As at 31 March 2023
' Carrying amount (net)
. As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
| As at 31 March 2023

Plant and
Equipment

128.16
(0.22)

127.95 .

(121.39)'

6.56

64.03
28.88 |
(0.20);

-
92.70 .

17.42 '
(103.95)

6.18

35.24
0.38

Office
Equipment

73.25
337

0.89
77.52
1,32
229
81,13

58.60 |

5.08

0.71
64.40
5.20
2,04
71.64

13.12
9.49

Leasehold
Improvements

132.86

74.76
14.51

80.27
14.51
103.78

43.59
29,08

Computers

17.31
2.67
(8.56)

11.43
3.06

14.48

1312
1.13°
(68.13)

6.13
2.25
8.38

5.30
6.10

Fumniture and Temporary

Fixtures Structures
46.51 0.85

- (0.85)’
46.51 -
46.51 -

31.61 0.00 |
3.90 =

- (0.00)
35.51 -
2.45 -
37.96 =
11.00 -
8.54 -

Yol vV~

Chartered Accountants

Vehicles

148.24

5.41 "
153.65 |
12210 |
(125.55).

13.10
164.37 '

83.16 |

18.85 |
3.39
105.40
22.10
(100.19)
10.20
37.52

48.25
126.86

63.94 .
(204.13)!

12.24 ‘
265.45

156.51
180.45
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

3.2 : Other Intangible Assets

Intanglble Assets

Deemed Cost
As at 01 April 2021
Additions
Disposal
As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
Addltions
Disposal
As at 31 March 2023
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2021
' Chaige for the year
- Disposals/adjustments
As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
Charge for the year
| Disposals/adjustments
As at 31 March 2023
| Carrying amount (net)
! As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
| As at 31 March 2023

3.3 : Right of Use Assets (Rol)

Particulars
Deemed Cost
. As at 01 April 2021
! Additions
Disposal
As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
Additions
| Disposal
i As at 31 March 2023
‘ Accumulated depreciation
i As at 01 April 2021
: Charge for the year
. Disposals/adjustments
As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
Charge for the year
Disposals/adjustments
As at 31 March 2023
' Carrying amount (net)
| As at 31 March 2022/ 01 April 2022
i As at 31 March 2023

Computer
Software

31.06

31.06
439 |

35,45

2314
1.98

2512
2.27"

27.39

5.94
8.06

ROU

25227
263.77

263.77

82.84
44.86

127.70
45.36

173.06

136.08
90.72

Total

31.06
31.06

439
35,45

23,14
1.98

25,12
2.27

27.39

594
8.06

Total

252,27
263.77

263.77

82.84
44.86

127.70
45.36

173,06

136.08
80.72

This space has been intentionally left blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Al Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)
4 Invesunents

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

4.1 Non-current
(i) Investments in equity instruments carried at cost (Unquoted)

Ir in Associate

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

As at the beginning of the year 2,274.34 2,278

Adjustment for share of profit/{loss) in Associates {6.19) (3.88)
2,268.16 2,274.34

Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation

2,268.16 2,274.34
The Company holds 10,00,000 (2022:10,00,000) Equity Shares of R3.10 each, issued at a premium of Rs 179.40 per share.

Darshan Nirman Private Limited

As at the beginning of the year -0.04 -0.04
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (refer note below)

(0.04) (0.04)
Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation

(0.04) (0.04)

The Company holds 2,500 (2022:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.

Pranati Niketan Private Limited
As at the beginning of the year 0.02 0.02
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (refer note below)

0.02 0.02

Adjustment for Goodwill on Consalidation
0.02 0.02
2,268.14 2,274.33

The Company holds 2,500 (2022: 2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each.
Note: The interest in associates is the camrying amount of the investment in the associate determined using the equity method.
During the year since the entity’s share of losses in two of its associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the entity

has discontinued recognising its share of further losses.

(ii) Investments in red ble non-cumulative optionally convertible preference shares

Unquoted Investments in preference shares in associate carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (Refer Note 4.2. below) 662.00 662.00
[5,00,000 shares of Rs 100 each, fully paid, Date of Maturity 30 November 2023]
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)
(Initial Cost : Rs.500 lakhs)

662,00 662.00

Note: As per the audited consolidated financial statement of the associate entity the investment in optionally convertible preference
shares have been considered as compound financial instrument.

2,930.14 2,936.33

4.2 Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:
Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi Nirmaan
Private Limited, an associate. These investments in shares does not satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are optionally
convertible into equity shares and their dividends are linked to profits eamed. Accordingly, the Company has classified these
investments in shares at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The fair valuation for this purpose was carmied by an
Independent firm of Chartered Accountants.

VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs. unless otherwise stated)

4.5

4.6

Investment by Zuari Infraworld SJM Properties LLC, Dubai

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the step down subsidiary company has made subscription for 50% share in the
issued share capital of Burj District Development Ltd (“JV Company"), Cayman Islands made up of 25,000 shares of B class of US$
1 each as per JV agreement. The joint venture is engaged to camy out any activities which is not prohibited by the Companies Law (
2011 revision) of Cayman Islands.

The JV Company has not opened bank account and hence the share capital is not contributed by the subsidiary company. The JV
Company's incorporation and renewal expenses are accounted in subsidiary's books of account. The JV Company hold 1 share in
Burj District One Limited, Jebel All Offshore Company, Dubal, UAE, which owns a plot of land on which the project "St Regis
Residencies” is being developed by the subsidiary company. Post completion of the project, profitability and its sharing between the
JV partners will be separately determined extracting qualifying costs and revenue from that company's account.

The subsidiary company's interest in an joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the financial statements.

Accumulated losses of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsldlary company.

The subsidiary company has incurred a loss of AED 48.51 lakhs (equivalent Rs. 1,064.09 lakhs) during the year (2022: AED 53.20
lakhs (equivalent Rs. 1.077.60 lakhs)) and has accumulated losses of AED 243,73 lakhs {equivalent Rs.5,452 .85 lakhs) (2022: AED
195.22 lakhs (equivalent Rs.4,028.36 lakhs)) as of that date resulting in deficit in equity funds. This situation is not in compliance
with U.A.E. Federal Law No.2 of 2015. The deficit is due to start-up phase of the project and the parent entities and the joint venture
partners have funded the projects in kind. They have agreed to continue their support. The revised cash flow forecast shows
pasitive and profitable financial performance.

5 Other financial assets As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
5.1 Non-current
Security deposits (carried at amortised cost)* 31.00 31.00
Security deposits (carried at cost)* 2.40 2.40
33.40 33.40
5.2 Current
Security deposits - Current (Carried at cost)* 58.55 35.44
Interest accrued and due - Others (refer note 7.5. below)* 33.72 33.72
Interest Accrued but not due 98.69 99.46
Advance to employees 19.95 6.35
Expenses Recoverable (refer note 5.4. below)* 157.33 157.33
Deferred revenue expenditure (refer note 5.5 below) 1.950.53 1,950.53
Unbilled Revenue - Service Contr. (Refer Note 5.3 below) 9.24 138.56
2,327.99 2,421.39
* These balances are subject to confirmation.
5.3 Includes service income accrued and not billed to related parties;
Zuari Industries Limited, India - Sales and Development Management Commission 8.24 38.56
8.24 38.56
5.4 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;

Brajbhumi Nirnaan Private Limited, India 157.33 157.33
Zuari Global Limited, India

157.33 157,33

5.5 Expenditure incurred against various projects under preview, revenue from these projects will be accruing in coming years

Chartered Accountants 7
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

6 Deferred tax (Asset) / liability (net}) As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
6.1 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Unrealised gain on investment in mutual funds caried at fair value through profit or loss =
Unrealised gain on Investment in preference shares caried at fair value through profit or los 45 45.07
Lease liabilities (1) 3.41
Timing differences on benefit obligations through OCI L
Others =
Financial liabilities and assets camied at amortised cost;
- Interest an preterence shares =
43,98 48.48
6.2 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Propery, plant and equipment and Intangihle assets 37 33.73
Provision for employee benefits obligations 16 15.57
MAT Credit Entilement > =
Unrealised Profit on DMC fees 076 0.76
Others 114 119
167.89 169.46
Unused Tax Losses 857 260.13
Less: Not considered for deferred tax purposes {857) (260.13)
-123.91 -120.98
Also, refer note 27 for other tax related disclosures.
6.3 The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and current
tax liabiliies and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
6.4 As the management expects that the interest on Non convertible cumulative redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a
deduction, the income tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Equity, since the initial recognition was in Other Equity.
7 Other Assets As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good
7.1 Non-Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note 7.3 below) 639.61 639.61
Capital Advance (refer note 7.8 below) 4,798.90 4,384.94
Goods and Service Tax Refund (refer note 7.4 below) 277.46 223.46
Kamataka VAT - refund receivable 576 5.76
Service tax - refund receivable 10.35 10.35
Less: Provision towards service tax refund -10.35 -10.35
5,721.72 5,253.76
7.2 Current
Advance to vendors (refer note 7.5 below) 2417.79 2,451.90
Goods and Services tax input credit (Refer Note 7.4. below) 199.50 212.814
Prepaid expenses (refer note 7.6 below) 99.62 137.67
Other receivable (Refer Note 7.7 below) = -
Credit of Input VAT 234.40 145.09
2,951.31 2,947.46
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7.3

7.4

i

"

7.

-2

77

Includes ardvance payments made by the Company under the Development Management Agreement to agencies which are entitled
to certain percentage of income calculated in the manner specified therein. The advance payments made aggregated to Rs. 639.61
lakhs as at 31 March 2023 (2022: Rs. 639.61 lakhs) and these will be adjusted in the year when the agency becomes entitled to
share of income as per the agreement. One of the operating creditors of one of the Agency company has initiated insolvency
proceeding against that Company. The Management has currently initiated legal proceedings and is pursuing recovery through
arbitration and other legal means with that party. The management does not expect any significant effect of the same on it's carrying
balance and expects to adjust/recover the same in full and accordingly no adjustment is considered necessary at this stage.

Represents Goods and Service lax paid on export of services which is expected to be claimed as refund.

Includes recoverable advances paid v a sub-contraclor amounting lo Rs.2,248.49 lakhs (2022: Rs 2,246.49 lakhs). The
Management 15 i1 fegotiation with that party tor its recovery including interest accruen 8,483,724 lakhs (£022° 148,34./2 lakhs) as
disclosed in Note 6.2 The Management has currently initiated legal proceedings and is pursting recovery through arbitration and
other legal meane with that party and is optimistic that this advance will bec completely recovered by the Company . Hence in the
view of the Management no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

Includes Rs.79.48 lakhs (2022 Rs.117.46 lakhs) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for services, on
gross sale consideration receivable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such
commission is refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & Loss Statement as and when revenue is
recognised on a proportionate basis.

This includes advance amount paid Rs. 4,798.90 lakhs (2022: 4,333.35 lakhs) to a related party (Joint venturer) as per Property
Development Contract towards purchase of land on which “St. Regis Residencies” project is being developed by the company. The
balance amount of Rs.26,623 lakhs (AED 119 million considered at rate of Rs.22.37 / AED as at the reporting date) will be paid on
completion of the project. The total value of the land is taken at Rs.31,322 lakhs (AED 140 million considered at rate of Rs.20.64 /
AED as at the reporting date) as per the valuation. The land value will be accounted in the books on registration of the project with
RERA. During the previous year this amount was disclosed as advance for land in the financial statements of the subsidiary.

Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

8.1

8.2

8.2

Completed units ( Refer Note 8.1. below) 519.21 519.21
Construction Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land , Borrowing Cost and Project Constru 21,488.32 27,405.97
and Development Cost) (Refer Note 8.2 below)

Development Work-In-Progress relating to subsidiary (Refer Note 8.3 below) 43,653.00 36,138.02

65,660.53 64,063.19

Represents residential units in respect of which company has entered into agreement for sale with the respective customers,
amounts received against these agreements by the company has been reported as advance from customers in Note No. 18.
Pending receipt of balance consideration and executlon of absolute sale deed effecting the transfer of legal title/deemed handover
of the property, the same is reported as Inventory.

Includes Rs.1,950.53 lakhs (2022: Rs.1,950.53 lakhs) being cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s. Zuari Industries
Limited which is pending formalising the terms and conditions. These balances are subject to confirmation from that party however,
the Management of the company expects these costs to be recovered in full and during the previous year it is transferred to
Expenses recoverable Refer Note No. 5.5

The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its construction work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of the
project which is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including escalations
and cost overrun). This review by the management did not result in any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying
value of project work-in-progress was required and external valuation was not considered necessary by the Management. In respect
of early stage projects, the underlying fair value of land based on valuation report of chartered engineer was considered for the
purpuse of delermining Lthe net realisable value and the camying value of the canstruction work-In-progress was found ta be less
than the net realisable value so ascertained.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

9 Trade receivables As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, Considered Good

9.1 Current
Trade receivables - Related Parties (refer note 9.2. below) 459.53 482.46
Trade receivables - others* 71.15 1,032.46

530.69 1,514.92

9.2 Receivables from the related parties;

Zuari Industries Limited 48.16 71.09

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02

Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited 5.06 5.06

Zuari Farmhub Limited 2.30 2.30
459.53 482.46

*Balances are subject to confimation

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 | 6 months -1 | 1-2 years| 2-3 years More than 3 Total
months year years

Undisputed Trade receivables — 48.16 - 7.36 71.18 404.02 530.69

tonsidared good

Previous year

Undisputed Trade receivables — 962.00 77.81 71.09 - 404.02 1.514.92

considered good

9.3 The Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables, accordingly no allowance towards non recovery is
considered necessary by the Management.

9.4 No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person.
Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director
or a member.

10 Cash and bank balances As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash on hand 0.56 6.73

Balances held in banks in current account 6,427.92 2,879.26

Deposits held with banks with other than lien marked more than 3 months but less that 12

months maturity period* 328.22 594.03

Other balances held with bank

Deposits held with banks licn marked with more than 3 months but less that 12 months matu 24,542.29 23,417.76

Balance in ESCROW accounts 25315.82 -
56,614.81 26,897.78

Note: These balances are as per lhe statement ot account obtained from that bank and subject to confirmation.
*Rs. 24,542.29 (2022 Rs, 23,417.76) lakhs held as lien by yes bank against guarantee given to the bank for the loan taken by SJM
propertics LLC, Dubai a step down subsidary
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

[AHl Amounis in Indian Rupses in lakhs uniess otherwise slaled)

11 Share capital

As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1.1

n Authorised
5,00,00,000 (2022:5,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

1.50,00,000 (2022:1,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each

(i) Issued, subscribed & paid up
5,00,00,000 (2022:4,65,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

1,14,50,000 (2022:1,14,50,000) Nan-Convertible Cumulative Redeemabie

Preference Shares of Rs 10 each issued al premium of Rs. 90 each.

(Also, refer note 13.9. below )

112 Reconcili uity shares outstanding at the begir

Particulars
_[shares of Rs. 10/- each)

At the beginning of lhe year
Issued during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

ing and at the end of the reparting year:

As at
31 March 2023
Nos. Amount {Rs.)
4,85,50,000 4,855.00

34,50,000 345.00

5,00,00,000 5,000.00

y a5 a1 31 March 2023

11.3  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Co

5,000.00 5,000.00
1,500.00 1,500.00
6,500.00 6,500.00
5,000.00 4,655.00
1,145 00 1.145 00
A,145.00 5,800.00

As at 31 March 2022

Nos. Amount (Rs.)
4,85,50,000 4,655.00
4,65,50,000 4,655.00

As at As at 31 March 2022
Name of the Sharzholder 31 March 2023
No's. % holding ~ No's. . % holding
Zuari Industries Limited, the Halting Company 5,00,00,000 100% 4,65,50,000 100%

(Including 10,000 equily shares jointly held)

maintained by the Company

11.4  During the year issued of 34,50,000 (Thirty Four Lakhs and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each
at a premium of Rs. 48/- (Rupees Farty Eight only) o Zuari Industries Limited,
12 Other equity As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
12.4 Deemed equity on fair-vall j toN i i d le p Shares:
Equity component of redeemable Preference Shares
562.11 562.11
Income tax effect on the interest portion on Preference shares |146.15] (146.15)
415.96 415.96
Also refer note 13.8. below for detailed disclosure on preference shares.
12.2 Security Premium Aceount:
A5 at the beginning and end of the year 10,305.00 10,305.00
Add: Addition during the year 1,658, 00 -
11,961.00 10,305.00

Opening balance of security premium represents premium on issue of lative compulsarily r preference shares. During the
year issued of 34,50,000 (Thirty Four Lakhs and Fifty Thousand) equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten only) each at a
premium of Rs. 48/- (Rupees Forty Eight only) to Zuari Industries Limited.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Al Amounts i indian Rupsssin lakhs, unlass otherwise stated)

12.3 Balance in profit and Loss Statement
As at the beginning of the year (4,622.06) (3,381.43)
Add: Profit for the year before OC! {4,626.31) (1,248.78)
Add: Re-measurement gains/(loss) an defined benefit plans, not reclassified to profit or loss 8.15
Net deficits In the profit and loss statement (9,248.37) (4,622.06)
12.4 Foreign currency translation reserve
As at the beginning of the year. (222 91) (146.88)
Exchange differences on translating the i of foreign idiary -422.66 (76.04)
(645.57) {222.91)
2,4B3.02 587593
The Remeasurements gains in respect nf emplinyee henefits included above aro as under;
As at the beginning of the year. 2549 17.33
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans - 11.29
Ingomo tak offaet an ahava - (3. 143
Balance carried forward 25.49 25.49
13 Borrowings As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
131 Long-term borrowings:
(i) Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks:
Yes Bank Lud, IFSC Banking Unit (refer 13.3 below) 22,11109 22,736.47
22,111.09 22,736.47
Term Loans from others:
LIC housing finance limiled (refer note 13.4 below) 16,525.92 18,466.60
Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note 16.1. below) (4,851,00) -
IIFL Weaith Management Limited 4,999 64 3,003.25
IIFL Wealth Prime Limited -Debentures 9,000,00 -
47,785.65 44,206.32
(i)  Unsecured Loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties {refer note 13.6. below)
Akshay Poddar 3,332.18 3,073.39
Globalware Trading & Hoidings Limited, UAE 1,959.83 1,704.45
Zuart International Limited 16,780.97 7,693.53
Adventz Securities Enterprises Ltd 71942 708
Zuari Global Limited (carried at cost) 151,580 6.514.13
22,944.20 19,993.11
Other Loans (refer note 13.5)
Fairy Ryde Limiled 1,224 96 1,130
Purshottam Kanji Co 1,342.35 1,238
2,567.31 2,367.93
Liability p of p ial instrument
Non-Cunvertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 1,145.00 1,145
(Also, refer note 13.9 below)
74,442.17 67,712.36
13.2 short -term borrowings:
(i) Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks
Vehicle Loan 6169 =
Barclays Bank PLC 9,004.00 8,562
9,065.68 9,561.58
{ii)  Unsecured loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from related parties {refer note 13.6. below)
Indian Furniture Products Limited 29.29 24.87
29.29 24,87
Inter-Corporate Deposits from (refer note 13,6 helow)
Matheson Bosanquet Enterprises Pvt Ltd 1,025.35 507.58
Adventz Finance Private Limited {carried at cost) 1,747.16 1,503
Teainaco nfastructure & Holdings Limited (carried at cost) 804.23 753.86
Addies Innovations Pvt Ltd - 139.49
Sanjana Cryogenic Storages Ltd 304.62 500.00
Innovation Management Solutions DMCC 3.36 3.10
leshniwal Brothers (SR} P Ltd 203.12 =
Raibareilly Flour Milis P Ltd 134.33 £
Art Rubber Industries Ltd 302.89 =
Deepa Bagla Financia! Consultants P Ltd 500.94 -
Estrela Batteries Limited 150.71 -
5,176.70 3,407.05
14,271.68 12,393.50

VSPV & Co.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All Amounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

13.3

13.4

135
]

(i

(i)

Yes Bank Ltd, IFSC Banking Unit

Finance facilly availed by Zuari SJM Properties LLC, Dubai slep down subsidiary comprising of term loan facility with the total sanctioned
limit of Rs.24,609.75 lakhs [AED 110 million al rate al the reporting date of Rs.22.372 per AED (USD 30.5 million)] (2022: Rs.22,698.5 lakhs
{AED 110 million at rate al the reporling dale of Rs.20.635 per AED (USD 30.5 million}]) from Yes Bank Limited, IFSC banking unit, GIFT
city, Gujaral, India towards project development relaled expense.

Term loans are secured as described herein below and bear interest of 6 months USD LIBOR plus 4.95% p.a.. The loan amount is
repayable after 72 months in one bullet payment from the total draw down

Securities offered:

- Charge on current assets both present and future owned by Zuari Infraword S J M Properties L.L.C, UAE

- Charge on share of project cash flow including reimbursement and surplus.

- Pledge of Fixed Depositst owned by group companies amounting to INR 235.42 lakhs .

- Pledge of listed India shares held by New Eros TradeCom Limiled.

In wddibon, there are vanous filions and | | covenanls allached lo the bank taciities, which aré Ih tha normal coursa or businass.

LIC Housing Finance Limited

Term loan facility of Rs.20,000 lakhs for takeover of outstanding lean of Rs.13,000 lakhs from Federal bank limiled and as a top up for
construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase |, Il & Il project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 36 manths moratorium
for repaymant of principal from the date of first disbursement with right to accelerate paymenl based on the review of cash flows. This lvan
is secured by equitable mortgage on the Land and Building to be constructed under project name ‘Zuari Garden City' in area measuring to
50 Acres and 35 Guntas {excluding sold units), Project receivables and further secured by Corporate Guarantee issued by Zuari Global
Limited, the Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which are in ordinary
course of business. The loan oulstanding as at 31 March 2023 is Rs.11,866.94 lakhs (as at 31 March 2022 : Rs. 15,094 56 |akhs),

Guaranleed Emergency Credit Line Scheme sanctioned limil of Rs,3,250 lakhs ta construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase |, Il & lll
project which is repayable over a period of 60 months wilh 12 months moratorium for repayment of principal from the date of first
disbursement and the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2022 is Rs. 2,585.68 lakhs (2022:Rs. 3,250.00).

Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line Scheme 2.0 sanclioned limit of Rs.2,028 lakhs to construction finance for Zuari Garden City Phase |, Il
& lIl project which is repayable over a period of 60 months with 24 months moratorium for repayment of principal fram the date of first
disbursement and the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2023 is Rs. 2,028.00 lakhs (2022:Nil)

u d Inter-Corp Deposits from related parties

Zuari Industries Limited, Holding Company

Unsecured lerm loan from Zuari Global Limited, the holding company to meet the working capital needs of the Company. The unpaid loans
which was due for payment during the year was rolled over and renewed for a further period up to 30 June 2022, without any changes to
the existing terms and condilion, detailed as under.

Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Outstanding Loans during Repaid Interest Outstanding | Due Date*
31 March the Year accured and 31 March 2022
2021 due {including |
{including interest
interest . accured)
accured)
Loan at 8% p.a; 1,072,488 - 1.072.99 - - -
Loan 81 12% pa 1.035.18 - 1,035.18 - = =
Laan at 15% p.a_ 4.705.96 103240 5,589.36 2,81 151,80 31-Mar-25
Total 6,814.13 1,032.40 7,697.53 281 161.80

~Due datas afler considering rollover renewal during the year,
** ROl are changed fram 14% (FY 2019-20) to 15% (FY 2020-21)

Adventz Finance Private Limitad

During the year Additional loan for working capital purpose of Rs. 200 lakhs from Adventz Finance Private Limited, a group company carries
interest rate of 12.5% p.a. The loan along with interest is due in 11 months i.e. 30th April 2023 and accordingly disclosed under current
liabilities. The loan outstanding including interest accruals as at 31 March 2023 is Rs.1,747.16 lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs.1,503.02 lakhs).
Since lhe loan is repayabte within 13 months the given loan is not carried at amortised cost.

Other loans from related party taken by subsidiary company

This represents unsecured and 12.5% (D to 12%) per annum interest bearing loans availed from related parties which are repayable within
a period of 2 years. The parties has also agreed lo extend lhe financial supperl to the Company by not demanding payment of their
oulstanding dues lill such time as tlhe company's equity is restored

vsPV & Co.
VSPV & =2
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138

13.7

13.8
U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

13.8

Other Unsecured Inter-Corporate Deposits

Unsecured short-term inter corporate deposits from the following panies 1o meel working capital requirements of the Company. The delails
of the same is given below.

Party Name Amount Amount Rate of Date / due date Interest As at 31 March
borrowed Repaid during Interest for Repayment Accrued and 2023 (including
during the the year not due accrued interest)

year

Texmaca Infrastruciure & Repayable on

Holdings Limited - - 1875% demand S i

Indian Furndure Products " Repayable on

Limited i B oL demand i 2828

Aadoles innavatong Fit _LH‘I - 135.00 18.00% 2/-Mar-23 -

Matheson Bosanguet . . -

Enterprises Pvi Lid 1.000.00 500,00 1L.0U0% U2-Aug-23 25.35 1,025.35

Sanjana Cryogenic Slorages Lld 300.00 300.00 16.00% 06-Jun-23 462 304.62

Toshniwal Brothers (SR) P Ltd 200.00 200.00 16.00% 12-0ct-23 3.12 203,12

Rainareilly Flaur Mills & Lid 130,00 130.00 16,00%  31-May-23 4.33 134,33

Art Rubber industries Lid 300.00 300.00 16.00% 07-Jun-23 289 302.89

DCespa Bagla Financial

Consullants B Lid 500.00 500.00 17.00% 29-May-23 094 50094

Estrels Sattenes Limited 150.00 150.00 17.00% 19-Jun-23 0.71 150.71

Total 2,580.00 2,215.00 346.19 3,455.48

Other Unsecured Loans

This represents unsecured and 12% (0 to 12%) per annum interest bearing loans availed from related and non-relaled parties which are
repayable within a period of 2 years.The parlies has also agreed to extend the financial support to the Company by not demanding payment
of their outslanding dues till such lime as lhe company’s equity is restored

Non-Convertible C ive le Pr
Reconciliation of Shares O ding at the beginning and end of the reporting year

As at As at
Non-Convertible C ive Red ble Pr Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at
premium Rs 90 per share 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Al lhe beginning of the year 1,14,50,000 1,14,50,000
Issued during the year - a
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 1.14,50,000
Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year
Non-Convertible C ive Red ble P Shares As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per share. In No's In % In No's In %
Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar 85,000,000 74% 85.00.000 T4%
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limiled 29,50.000 26% 28,50,000 26%
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 100% 1,14,50,000 100%
Rights, p & icti hed to Non-Convertible C i Pr
The Company has anly one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of 8.5%
per annum which are lative in nature and red ble on 08 Dec 2024 {70,00,000 Shares), 30 July 2025 (15,00,000 Shares) and 31

March 2027 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. The Company has extended the redemption period of 15,00,000 preference shares which
was due on 31 March 2025 to 30 July 2025, These shares are redeemable at a price band of Rs 125 - Rs 150 per preference share. During
the year the Company has ded the r ption period of 29,50,000 preference shares which was due on 31 March 2022 lo 31 March
2025, Ihese share are reedmable al a price band of Rs. 200 - Rs, 217 per preference share. Cach holder of preference sharcs is cntiticd to
one vate per share on resolutions placed before the company.

Pursuant to Schedule (Il of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act"), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Financial Instruments,
Non-convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares which are settled in cash needs to be classified as ‘financial liability' and not
‘equity’. Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering lhe effective interest rate (EIR) at 14%
and the portion computed as 'Borrowing' amounting to Rs.1,145.00 lakhs (2022 : Rs.1,145.00 lakhs) has been classified under 'Long-term
Borrowings' and Lhe portion computed as lhe deemed equity amounting to Rs. 415.96 lakhs (2022 : Rs.415.96 lakhs), net of taxes has
been reported under 'Other Equity"

With respecl to premium received on issue as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no adjustmenls/
disclosures has been carried out as conlemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule Ill of lhe Act, since such classification of
the 'securities premium account' inlo 'borowings' or 'other equity' will ba inconsistent with the provisions of seclion 52 of the Act which
stipulates lhe manner in which the securities premium account can be utilised. Also the additional premium payable on lhe redemption has
not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a liabilily will be violative of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been |egally advised thal no further recognition or adjusimentls to lhe premium amounts are required
in view of the specific provisions of section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordingly, no adjustments as required under Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109
read with Schedule Il of the Act are made in respect of the premium payable on redemplion

IIFL Wealth Prime Limited -Debentures

Secured, unrated and unlisted Non-Converlible Debentures (NCDs’) aggregaling to INR 9,000.00 lakhs comprising of 900 debenlures of
INR 10 lakhs each, bearing interest rate of 14.00% p.a. were issued by the Campany during the year to liFL Wealth Prime Limited.

This loan is secured by following:

(i) A first ranking exclusive piledge to be created over 85,00,000 of preference shares of the Company (“ZIIL Preference Shares"), held by
Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar (“Promoter”) to ensure thal a security cover is maintained at all times till the Debentures are redeemad in full, to
the satisfaction of the Debenture Truslee along with all rights, tille, claims, demands, benefits and interests of the Company therein , in
favour of lhe Debenture Trustee, for the benefil of lhe holders of the Debentures (“Pledge”);

(i) A first ranking and exclusive charge by way of mortgage over Martgaged Properly (as mare parlicularly described in Schedule hereta)
pursuant to the relevant dacuments executed by Indian Furniture Products Limited (“Mortgagor”) in relation to creation of such morigage in
favour of Debenture Trustee (“Mortgage”);

(i) A first ranking and exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over all the present and future receivables of the Company and all the
rights, tille, interests, benefits, claims, proceeds, demands whatsoever or any part thereof of the Company in relation to such receivables
(*Hypothecated Assets™), in favour of lhe Debenlure Trustee; (‘Hypothecation™)

Chartered Accountants
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14 Lease Liabilities

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

14.1 Non-Current

Lease Liabilily 119.18 1/0.46
119.18 170.46
14.2 Current
Lease Liability 76.82 87.06
76.82 87.06

14.3

(i)

T A9sns - WTED

Other Notes on leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period beginning April 1, 2018 and applied lhe slandard to its leases,
retrospectively, with the cumulalive effecl of initially applying the standard, recognised on the dale of initial application (April 1, 2019).
Accordingly, the Company has not restated comparative informalion, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard has
been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on Agril 1, 2019

On transition, the adoplivn uf the new standard resulted in recogaiition of 'Righl of Use' assel of Rs.256.70 lakhs, 'Net investinent in
sublease' of ROU asset of Rs.214,78 lakhs and a lease liability of Rs.580.66 lakhs. The cumulalive effect of applying the standard was
debited to retained earnings, which amounted to Rs.80.79 lakhs (net of tax effect on lhe same Rs. 28.39 lakhs). The adoplion of this
standard has resulted in an increase in cash inflows from operating activilies and corresponding increase in cash outflows from financing
activilies on account of lease payments. The details of leases for the office premises in this regard are as under.

The movement in lease liabilities is as follows:

Particulars Forthe year |Forthe year ended
ended March March 31, 2022
31, 2022
230,82 464,71
e cost accrued during the yeal o 28,47 40.45
ble lowards lease liabilties 69.99 95.49
A tment ange in terms of lease agreement 0.00 178.85
Balance as at the end 169.29 409.67

*excluding refundable rent deposil of Rs.26.70 lakhs carried at amortised cost.

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2023 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :

Particulars As at March 31| As at March 31
2023 2022
Lessthanoneyear 95.71 £9.59
One year to five years 100,28 187.53
_more lhan five years 0,00 0.00
Total 195.99 257.52
(iii.) The in neti in subl is as
Particulars Forthe year |Forthe year ended
ended March March 31, 2022
31, 2023
Balance at the beginning i a 197.19
Changes in opening balance due to change in terms a 0.00
Interest income accured during the year a 4.57
Leass redaints o 837
Adustment of change in terms of lease agraemant a 192,39
Balance as at the end 1] 0.00
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15  Trade payables As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
151 Non-Current
Retention Money - non current (carried at cost)* 91.30 91,30
91.30 91.30
15.2 Current
Retention Money - current {carried at costy” refer note 15.3. below 646.34 408.68
Dues lo relaled parties (carried at cosl) 152 1.52
Dues to micro & small enterprises (caried at cost)” refar note 15,4, balow 051 0.72
Dues to others (carried at cast)* 1.53A.78 1,309
2,187.18 1,720.36
Particulars Outstanding for following periads from duc date of payment
_ __ ieasthan1ye 1-Zyears 2-3 yrara Mnre than 3 yeara
(i) MSME - . 0.51 -
previous year 1.13 0.51 021 =
(i) Others 105227 31265, 31978 12695
_previous year 1,461,53 144.76 46.07 62.61
15.3 Includes retention money Rs.131.23 lakhs (2022 : Rs.131.23 lakhs) and other trade payables Rs.25.48 lakhs (2022: Rs.25.48 lakhs) to one
of the sub contractors in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with party for full and the final setilement. The said balance is
subject to confirmalion from that party
15.4 Details of dues to micro and small enlerprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME
Act) based an the ir d ilable with the Comp are as under:
Principal amount due lo suppliers under MSMED Act 0.51 0.51
Interest accrued and due to suppliers on above amount 0.08 0.10
Payment made to suppliers beyond appointed day during the year - 1.34
Interest paid to suppliers during Lhe year - -
Interest due and payable to suppliers lowards payment already made during the year 0.78 0.60
-~ Balances are subject to confirmation
16 Other Financial Liabilities As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
16.1 Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)
Current maturity of long term loans (refer nole 13) 4,851,00 -
Interest aceruals on loans 1,827.47 1,618.59
Refundable deposit (refer nate 16.2) £ 1.500.00
Other Deposits 14.96 14.96
Due to employees 186 0S 197.11
Due to related parties (refer note 16.3 below) 72.12 13.56
Due to olhers 0.44 0.44
6,952.04 3,344.66
16.2 Refundable deposits received from M/s. Mathias Construction Private Limited for the proposed development of land/property owned by
Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited in respect of which Zuari Infraworld India Limited will acquire the right of lease of the land/property.During the
year deposil is as proposed d p of land is d
16.3 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;

Mr. Alok Banerjee 57.11 8.00
Mr. Anshul Amit Sansal 13.87 4.37
Ms. Nishu Kakkar - 1.18
Dayanand G S 1.14 =
7212 13.56
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17  Provisions As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
171 Non-Current
Provision for graluily obligation 29.99 42.59
Provision for compensated absences 483 11.31
34.82 53.91
17.2 Current
Provision for gratuity obligation 2117 154
Provision for compensated absences 327 0.50
Staff end of service benefiis 72.69 47.28
97.13 49.33
Also, refer nole 37 for detailed disclosures on employee benefit plans.
18  Otherliabilitres As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Statutory dues 32058 200.94
Advances from customers relating to;
- Completed units pending registration or transfer of possession 50037 500,37
- Construclion work-in-progress 29,262 56 7.310.22
- Mainlenance charges 919 9.19
- Other cuslomer advances (refer nole 18.1 below) 1,516.14 1,881.24
Others 3423 31.57
31,643.07 9,933.53
18.1 Includes advances of Rs.482.46 lakhs (2022:Rs.341.72 lakhs) in respect of cancelled residential units in respect of which lhe Company is in

negatiation with parties for selling units of other projects against which these amounts are expected 1o be adjusted and Rs. 323,01 lakhs
{2022: Rs.323.01 lakhs) collected from the buyers towards club membership charges fees which will be adjusted against the expenses

incurred in this regard.

This space has been intentionally left blank
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19  Revenue from operations

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Sale of residential units 6,375 3,996.22
Development management fees (100) 2,093.58
Sales commission on sale of plots/residential units 41 51.37
Maintenance charges* - -
Other operating revenue - -
6,316.52 6,141.18

20 Otherincome

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Interest Income on ;
Deposits with Bank
Income tax refund
Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through Profit and loss
Unwinding of financial liability
Other miscellaneous income

1,418 841.83
12.86 -

_ 61.79

- 125.80

1.368.67 436.72

2,799.87 1.466.14

21 Project construction and development expenses

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Architect Fees

Depreciation on assets - Projects

Civil Work

Rework expenses charged to profit and loss

Site Office Expenses

Project Staff Costs

Managerial remuneration and expenses

Rent project office

Miscellaneous project Expenses

Foreign exchange translations differences on consolidation in respect of inve

Add: Borrowing cost incurred during the year

Add: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progres
Add: Other expenses transferred to construction work in progress

Less: Recovery of cost transferred to Expenses recoverable

714.46 299.88
17.42 28.88
1,601.27 2,434.01
20.22 44,39
180.96 138.83
40.13 133.16
80.66 24.31
1,230.76 42.52
3,252.09 1,314.94
7,737.16 4,463.35
1,569.48 4,738.06
100.50 237.38
- 20.66

- (1,950.53)
9,407.14 7,508.92

22 Changes in inventories

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Completed units of stock
Completed units at the beginning of the year pursuant to Ind AS 115
Completed units at the end of the year

Changes in completed units during the year

Construction Work-in- progress
Construction work-in-progress at the beginning of the year

Less: Recovery of cost incurred towards project manged by holding company

Adjusted Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Construction cost incurred during the year
Less: Cosl of Projects

Less: Finance cost transferred from inventories

Less: Recovery of cost incurred towards project manged by halding company

Less: Modification/rework charges charged to profit and loss during the year

Construction work-in-progress at the end of the year

Changes in construction work in progress
Less: Changes in WIP related finance cost

Total (Increase) / Decrease (a+b)

519.21 883.35
519.21 519.21
- 364.14
63,543.98 61,831.75
63,543.98 61,831.75
9,407.14 7,508.92
-4,837.60 (3,293.91)
-2,951.98 (1,235.20)
(1,223.18)
-20.22 (44.39)
65,141.32 63,543.98
(1,597.34) (1,712.23)
2,951.98 1,235.20
13,545.32) (2.547.44)
{1,597.34) (1,348.09)

VSPV & Co.

Chaiterc Accouutants

Page 31 of 46



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(All Arnounts in Indian Rupees in lakhs, unless olherwise slaled)

23 Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wages 619.98 495.88
Contribution to provident and other funds 48.54 22.20
Gratuity 8.28 10.84
Compensated absences -1.60 (3.06)
Staff welfare expenses 23.12 14.78
698.31 540.64
Less: Employee benefit expenses transferred to construction work in progre: (101) (237.38)
39781 303.25
24 Fmance costs For the year ended For the year ended
3! March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 6,180.11 6,674.20
Finance cost transferred from inventrories 2,951.98 1,235.20
Interest on MSME 0.09 0.09
Fair value adjustment pursuant to Ind AS: - =
Interest on lease liability (refer note 14) 28.47 35.85
Interest others - -
Interest on non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference shares - 36.41
9,160.66 7.,981.76
Less: Borrowing cost transferred to construction work in progress (1,569.48) (4,738.06)
7,591.17 3,243.70
25 Depreciation and amortization expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment 109.30 117.21
Amoartisation of intangible assets 2.27 1.98
Amortisation of right of use assets = =
111.58 119.19
Less: Depreciation & amortisation transferred to construction work in progre: (17.42) (28.88)
94.16 90.31
26 Other expenses For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rent 1.32 1.12
Travel and conveyance 76.43 32.08
Legal and professional fees 79.86 64.27
Communication and internet charges 13.22 10.34
Office Expenses 39.68 2234
Repairs and maintenance 21.85 38.97
Auditors remuneration 10.25 9.65
Recruitment expenses, net 0.32 B
Maintenance charges* 66.58 37.84
Advertising and publicity 43.97 65.92
Rates and taxes 36.83 212
Commission & Brokerage 54.27 75.08
Loss on financial assets measured at fair value - 5.00
Maintenance and Security 73.81 64.11
Loss on sales of fixed asset 524 s
Insurance 12.05 27.14
Directors sitting fees 1.10 1.20
Asset restatment balance - 3.32
Miscellaneous expenses 4.81 4.55
Balances written-off, net 56.90 15.55
Recruitment expenses - -
Preference Shares
598.48 480.60
Less: Other expenses transferred to canstruction work in progress - (20.66)
598.48 459,94
26.1 Remuneration to Auditors’ reported above includes
Statutory Audit Fees 7.15 715
Tax Audit Fees 0.83 0.83
Certification fees 2.27 1.68
10.25 9.65
VSPV & Co.
- —
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27 Income Tax

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Income tax expense - 96.50
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (2.93) (267.10)
(2.83) (170.61)

27.1 Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Profit before tax

Income tax expense calculated at 27.42% (2022 : 27.82%)

Adjustments for

Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shares

Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rate
Other adjustments

Income tax expense

97.70
27.18

(11.52)
(227.25)
(55 52)
96.50

[170.61)

27.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in
deferred tax are as follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds - -227.25
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible a: -3.11 -5.68
Temporary differences on benefit obligations -4.06 412
Fair valuation of investment in Preference shares - -11.52
Other adjustments - -2.47
Gain on sale of flats recognised as per Ind AS 115 8.73 -20.22
Fair valuation of leases -4.50 -0.94
(2.93) (263.96)

27.3 Deferred tax assets arising from the carmy forward of unused tax losses not are recognised in these financial statements as there is
that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the Compar

appropriate by the Management.
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28

Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

28.1 Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 investments
Zuari Infra Middle East Ltd UAE 100% 100% line by line

consolidation

28.2 Disclosure of Interest in the fellowing associates:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to

of As at As at account for

Incorporation 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 Investments
Rralbhuml Nirmaan Private | Imited India 25% 25% Equity Accounling
Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
Pranatl Niketan Private Limited India 25% 25% Equlty Accounting

Also, refer Note 2(c) for detailed disclosure and accounting treatment.
Note: As at 31 March 2023 Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited holds 50% (2022: 50%) of Darshan Nirman Private Limited and 50%

(2022: 50%) of Pranali Niketan Private Limited.

28.3 Information regarding Associates:

(a)

(b)

i. Carrying amount of investment in Associates As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited (0.04) (0.04)
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 2,274.34 2,278.22
ii. Share of Profit/{loss) of Associates As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (6.19) (3.88)

Note: Also refer note 4 of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.
28B.4 Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, based on its Ind AS financial statements and reconciliation with the carrying amount

of the investment in consalidated financial statements are set out below:

DARSHAN NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 277.34 277.41
Non-current financial liabilities (280.21) (280.09)
Equity (2.87) (2.69)
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets (0.72) (0.67)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 0.36 0.36
Value of the investmeant (0.26) (0.31)

ii. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended

31 March 2022

Other Expenses (0.18) (0.14)
Profit/(loss) before tax (0.18) (0.14)
Income tax (expense)/cradit - -
Profit/(loss) for the year {0.18) (0.14)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income {0.18) (0.14)
Proportion of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group's share of profit/(loss) for the year {0.05) {0.04)
PRANATI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED
i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 217.87 217.95
Non-current financial liabilities (220.15) (220.05)
Equity (2.28) (2.10}
Proportion of the Group's ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets (0.57) (0.53)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 0.36 0.36
Value of the investment (0.21) {0.16)
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(c)

ii. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Other Expenses (0.18) (0.14)
Profit/(loss) before tax (0.18) (0.14)
Income tax (expense)/credit - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (0.18) (0.14)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income (0.18) (0.14)
Proportion of the Group's share 25% 25%
Group's share of profit/{loss) for the year (0.05) (0.04)
BRAJBHUMI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED
i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 22 556.25 21,006.75
Non-current assets 29.22 35.51
Current fiabilities including financial liabilities (19,390.58) (17.812.62)
Non current financial liabilities - -
Less: Deemed Equity (421.54) (421.54)
Equity - 2,773.36 2,808.11
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets 693.34 702.03
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 1,590.01 1,590.01
Adjustments for unrealised profits (17.66) (17.66)
Value of the investment 2,265.68 2,274.37

Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Revenue
Other Income

Purchase of Stock in trade

Change in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade)

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Cost

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other Expenses

Profit/{loss) before tax

Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Total comprehensive income

Proportion of the Group’s share

Group's share of profit/(loss) for the year

1239 -
0.71 .
13.10 -
1,642.36 1,505.65
(1,616.60) (1,505.65)
0.20 0.58
- 0.U1
0.89 0.99
7.05 13.87
33.90 15.45
(20.80) (15.45)
3.94 0.08
(24.74) (15.53)
{24.74) {15.53)
25% 25%
(6.19) (3.88)

Note: The above fumished information are extracted from the audited financial statements of that associate entities for the year ended 31

March 2023.
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29 Commitments and Contingencies

29.1 Contingent Liabilities (not provided for)

‘Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Dividend on Nen Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares not yet declared 536.63 536.63
,Tax demand for defaults under Section 201 of Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACES portal 6.35 6.26
of Income tax website, against which company is in the process of filing rectification.

Customer claims not acknowledged by the Parant Company 71.30 37.98 .
As per the audited consolidated Fi ial stats ts of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, an iate entity, disputed
tax demands to the extenl nol provided for is as under:

(a.) Income Tax demand pertaining to AY.2015-16 (FY 2014-15) pending before’ 427.66 427.66

Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) Kolkata. Against this demand, Parent Company hss
:deposited as on the date is Rs.27.46 lakhs (2022: Rs. 27.46 |akhs )

29.2 Capital Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Project construction and development, net of advances aggregates to,

Zuari Infraworld India Limited, Parent Company 1,301.62 4,127.09
Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, Subsidiary Company 72,613.46 66,974.14
73,915.08 71,101.23

29.3 Pledge of assets:

Yes Bank Limited for extending financing facility to Zuari SJM Properties LLC, Dubai, a Step-down subsidiary of the Company. The
amount of finance facility extended is USD 305 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 23,323.35 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 76.47 as at the
reporting date (2022: USD 630 lakhs (In Indian Rupees 45,675 lakhs, considering 1 USD = Rs 72.50). As per latest sanction terms
the above joint corporate guarantee is removed.

(@) The company has also provided security by way of pledge of fixed deposits held in the 24,542.29 23417.76
name of the Carnpany (fair value as at reporting date) for the loan referred to in (a) above.

3¢ Eamings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic Eamnings Per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent
by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares,
accordingly the Diluted EPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the computation of basic and diluted EPS :
(No. of shares in absoluta numbers)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit before DCI atiributable to equity holders of the parent company (4.626.31) (1,248.78)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) 4,79,77,260 4 ,65,50,000
Eaming/{Loss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) (9.54) (0.55)
Face value per share (Rs.) 10.00 10.00
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31 Related Party Disclosures

31.1 Details of related party and their relationship with the Company:

Sl.  Name of the related party Nature of relationship with the Company
No
1 2uari Industries Limited Holding Company
2 Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, UAE Subsidiary
3 Zuari Infraworld SIM Properties LLC, UAE Step down Subsidiary
4 Burj District Development Limited, Cayman Islands  Joint Venture (JV) of Step down subsidiary
__ 5 Rurj District Cne Limited, UAE Suhsidiary of the J\ of Step down subsidiary :
6 Zuari Management Servicea Limited F@vx Subaidiaries =t
7 Slimon Indla Limited " Fellow Subsidlaries
8 Forle Furmiturs Producte Inia Ptivals Limited Fellow Subsidiaries
Zuari Finserv Limited (formery known as Zuari Fellow Subsidiaries
Finserv Private Limited)
10 Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited Associate of member of a same group
11 Brajbhurni Nirmaan Private Limited Associates
12 Darshan Nirman Private Limited Associates
13 Pranali Niketan Private Limited Associates
14 Adveniz Trading DMCC Entities having common management control with subsidair
15 Globalware Trading & Holdings Lid, U.AE . Entities having common management control with subsidair
16 Indian Fumiture Products Limited. U.A.E . Entities having common management control with subsidair

17__ Green Tree Property Management Co. LLC. UWAE,  Joint Venture of Step down subsidiary

1g Athar Sahab (appointed w.e.f. February 01, 2022) ' Key Management Personnel

19 L M Chandrashekaran Key Management Personnel
20 Alok Banerjee, CEO & Director Key Management Personnel
21 Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer Key Management Personnel
22 Nishu Kakkar, Company secretary (resigned w.e.f 11 Key Management Personnel
November 2022) _

Dayanand G S Company Secretary (appointed w.e.f. Key Management Personnel
23 23 December 2022 & resigned w.e.f, 28 April 2023)

24 \inay Varma Key Management Personnel of subsidiary
25 Saroj Kumar Poddar Director of holding company
26 Akshay Poddar Person having significant influence & relative of director of

'holding company.

27 Pula Poddar Person having significant influence in subsidiary & relative
1 of director of holding company. |

31.2 Details of transactions with related parties:

Sl 'Particulars

No For the year ended . Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 Service Charges /| Management Fees Paid I

Zuari Finserv Limited (Formerly known as Zuari Finserv Private lelle( - 0,45
2 Recovery of cost incurred towards project handled by

Zueri Industries Limited - 1,223.18
3 Service Charges / Manag Fees |

'Zuari Industries Limited - Development Management Commission - 70.40

:Zuari Industries Limited - Sales Commission 41.41 16.37
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Si. Particulars

No For the year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

4 Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability
Zuari Global Limited

- Accepted 1,032.40 15,230.65

- Repayment 7.697.53 18,077.36

Globaiware Trading & Holdings Ltd

- Accepted 111,86 683.76

Akshay Poddar

- Accepted 258.78 108,73

Indian Fumiture Products Limited

- Aceepted 2.32 24,42

Adventz Trading DMCC

- Aceepted 2 3.04
5 Interest on ICD (Expenses)

Zuari Industries Limited 5633.72 1,227.52

_ Texmaco Infrastriciure & Holdings Limited 76.08 76.08

6 Guarantee Commission

Zugri Indsutries Limited - 54.96
7 Escrow& Restricted accounts

Burj District One Limited, UAE 25,315.82 -

31.3 Year-end balances
Sl. Particulars

No For the year ended As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 Other payable
Alok Banerjee, CEO& Director 57.11 8.00
Anshul Amit Bansal, CFQ 13.87 4.37
Nishu Kakkar Company secretary - 1.18

_ Dayanand G S Gompany secretary _ 1.14 -

2 Trade receivable
Brajbhumni Nirmaan Private Limited 404.02 404.02
Zuari Indstries Limited 4816  3B.56

3 Expenses Recoverable

___ Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 157.33 157.33

4 Loans from related parties:
Zuari Industries Limited 151.80 6,814.13
Globalware Trading & Holdings Ltd 1,859.83 1,704.45
Texmaco Infrastructure & Holdings Limited 804.23 753.86
Akshay Poddar 3,332.18 3,073.39

5 Advance for Land
_Burj District Development Limited, Cayman Islands o . 4798.90 4,333.35

6 Other receivable B
Adventz Trading DMCC - _1588:

7 Remuneration payable / dues to employees i

____ VinayVama | - 1.34

8 Other year-end balances
.(a) Service Income accrued and not billed

__ 2uari Industries Limited 8.24 __38.56

" 13 Investments in redeemable non-cumulative optionally convertible ﬁrEeT'eﬁce shares

____ Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited .. _B6200 66200
14 Escrow& Restricted accounts
Braibhumi Nirmaan Private | imited 25015602 -

31.4 Terms and conditions
All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in amm's length transactions and in
the normal course of business,
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32 Financial isk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise of lnans and borrowings, trade and other payables, security deposits and
employee dues. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's aperations and to provide guarantees
to support its operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables and cash and short-
term deposits that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of lhese risks. The Company's senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks
and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is primarily operating in the real
estate sector which is subject to The Real Fstate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and
commeadity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments in mutual
tunds.

32.

-

(i.) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's
long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term
Loan facility from LIC Housing Finance Limited and Yes Bank Limited is subject to floating rate of interest based on MCLR, while
the borrowings from the related enlities carry interest at a fixed rates. In case of subsidiary Company except for vehicle loan and
loan from related parties other than carrying floating rate of interest.

Interest sensitivity analysis ' Oﬁtstanding Increase/ Effect on profit
Loan facility decrease in before tax
subject to basis points

floating rates
For the year ended 31 March 2022

Increase in base points 18,466.60 +50 92.33
Decrease in base points 18,466.60 -50 (92.33)
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Increase in base points . 17.735.53 +50 88.68
Decrease in base points 17,735.53 -50 (88.68)

(ii.) Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's
operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency) and the Parent Company’s net investments in
foreign subsidiaries.

(iii.) Equity price risk
The Company’s non-listed equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

32.2 Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Trade receivables

(i.) Sale of units (Villas/ Villaments & Appartments):
Customer credit rigk is managed by "CRM team" subject to the Company’s established palicy, procedures and control relating to
customer cradit risk management. Qutstanding customer dues with respect to Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions.

(ii.) Development Management Fees:
Apart from real estate aclivities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Receivables includes dues
from these aclivities aggregated to Rs.452.17 lakhs (2022: Rs1,437.10 lakhs)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its customers
are refated and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the
realisation.
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32.3 Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds regularly and is directly monitored by CFO of the company ,

The Company's objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and
Debt Preference Shares.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further
the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas/apartments and is also ensured of
continued support from its Holding/ Associates Companies and the Promoters,

The management also obtained consent from the preference sharcholdars for extansion of the redamption of preferance shares
which e due for redemption on 3{ March 2022. These preference shares are now due for redemption on 31 March 2025,

32.4 Capital Management
For the purposc of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objeclive of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilites based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2023:

Particulars On demand <3 month 3to12months 1to3years > 3 years Total
Bomrowings 804.23 1,025.35 2,567.31 88,022.95 1,145.00 93,564.84

(Incl. Debt portion of
Fraferanca Sharss)

Trade payables 184.27 368.64 1,310.07 75.73 339.75 2,278.46
Lease liabflities - 23.91 71.80 100.28 - 195,99
Dther financial iabiliti=s - 63.56 210.01 - - 27357
Total 988.50 1,481.45 4,159.20 88,198.95 1,484.75 96,312.86

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments as at 31 March 2022:

Particulars On demand <3 month 3to12months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Berrowings 753.86 647.08 2,367.93 75,799.58 1,145.00 80,713.44

{inct. Debt portion of
Preference Shanas)

Lease liabilities 49.70 89.11 1.073.83 447.31 151,70 1,811.65
Trade payables - 14.57 43.71 199.23 = 257.52
Other financial liabilities - 63.56 162.51 1,618.59 1,500.00 3,344.66
Total 803.55 814.32 3,647.98 78,064.71 2,796.70 86,127.27
As per the consolidated fir ial stat 1ts of Zuari Infra Middle East Limited, a subsidiary Company

The primary objective of the subsidairy company capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareliolders value. The subsidiary company manages Its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in light of changes in the business conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended 31 March 2023. Capital comprises share capital in cash and kind (which is not measured) and accumulated
losses and is measured at deficiency of asset of AED 243.73 lakhs (equivalent to Rs.5,452.85 lakhs) as at 31 March 2022
(Previous Year deficiency of asset of AED 195.12 lakhs (equivalent to Rs.4,026.24 lakhs).
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35 Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the financial instruments
Particulars Carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss

Preference Shares held in Associate Company 662.00 662.00
Financial assets carried at fair value

Interest accrued and due 33.72 33.72
Interest accrued and not due 98.69 99.46
Expenses Recoverable - Related parlies 157.33 157.33
Loans and advances - -
Unbilled Revenue - Service contracts 9.24 138,56

Unbilled Revenue - Others - =
Netinvestrnent (Sub-lease)

Security depaosits 31.00 31.00
Trade Reccivables 530.69 1,514.92
Cash and cash equivalents 56,614.81 26,847.78
Advance to employees 19.95 6.35
Financial assets carried at cost

Investment in Associate 2,268.16 227434
Security deposits 60.95 37.84
Total 60,486.51 31,853.30
Financial liabilities carried at fair value

LIC Housing Finance Limited 11,674.92 18,4G6.60
Yes Bank Ltd, IFSC Banking Unit 22,111.09 22,736.47
Vehicle Loan = =
Preference shares (debt portion} 1.145.00 1,145.00
Security deposit towards sub lease - -
Loan from related parties 5,292.01 4777.84
Other loans 7.744.01 14,176.11
Refundable deposit - 1,500.00

Deferred Rental on security deposits - -
Current maturity of long term loans - -
Lease liability 195.99 257.52

Other payable to related parties 72.12 13.56
Other deposits 14.96 14.96
Dues to employees 186.05 197.11
Interest accruals on loans 1,827.47 1,618.59
Trade payables 2,278.90 1,812.09
Total 52,542.52 66,715.84
Other Notes:

(i) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter
corporate deposils, loan to related party and trade payables approximate their camying amounts largely due to the short-term
malurities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

(ii.) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCF model and considering the future cash
outflow in this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuatlon requires management to make certain assumptions about
the model inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilities of the various estimates
within the range can be reasonably assessed and are used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference
shares.

(b.) The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing barrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at
the end of the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.

36 Fair Hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Preference shares held in Associate 662.00 = - 662.00

(i.) Amounts in the parenthesis represent previous year.
(ii.) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.
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37 Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

Particulars As at 31 March 2023

- _ _ Current . Non-current
Value of Plan - Gratuity {Un-Funded) 21.17 29.99
Gratuity:

As at 31 March 2022

Current
1.54

Non-current
42.60

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on

departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded status

and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

Particulars

Current Service Cost
Net Intarest Cost
Expense recognised in profil and loss statement

(ii.} Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation:
Particulars

(Gain)oss fram change in demographic assumptions
(Gain)loss from change in financial assumptions
Experience [gains) / losses

Total actuarial {gain)/loss

(iii,, Other comprehensive income
Particulars

Actuarial (Gain}/Loss recognized for the period
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in (OCI)

liv.| Changes in the present value of the deflned benefit obligation are, as follows:

Particulars

Opening defined obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Contribution paid

Actuarial (gain)/ loss on abligations
Defined benefit obligation

Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

As at
31 March 2023
6.92
2.90
9.83
As at
31 March 2023
(0.45)
218
1.73
As at
31 March 2023
1,73
1.73
As at
31 March 2023
28.89
6.82
2.80
1.73
40.44

(v.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity ot ligations for the Cor

Particulars

Martality

Interest { Discounl Rale

Ralte of increase in compensation

Expected average remaining service

Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratiity Act, 1972
iEmployee Attrition Rate (Past Service)

y’s plans are shown below:

As at
31 March 2023
IALM (2012-14) Ult
7.45%
5.00%
14.28
Rs. 20 Lakhs

PS: 0to 18 years : 3%
PS: 18 to 30 years : 2%
PS:30to 42 years : 1%

PS:30to 42 years: 1% -

As at
31 March 2022
7.91
294
10.84
As at
31 March 2022
(8.04)
(7.08)
(15.09)
As at
31 March 2022
(16,09)
(15.09)
As at
31 March 2022
33.14
7.91
294
{15.09)
28.89
As at

31 March 2022

IALM (2012-14) U,

6.70%

5.00%

14.54
Rs. 20 Lakhs

PS:0to 18 years : 3%
PS: 18to 30 years : 2% !

Chnﬂ;rer} Accon

otants

Page 42 of 46



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
{All Amounts in Indian Rupzas in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Gratuity Plan "7 Asat31 March 2023 . As at 31 March 2023

Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases

Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 47.76 55.15 5513 47.72
Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 Marech 2022

Assumptions Discount rate ) Future salary increases

Sensltivity Level +1% increase ' -1% decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit obligation 37.440 43.79 43.78 37.37

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

(vii. The following pay are exp d contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within the next 12 months 21.17 1.54
Betwsen 2 and b years 4.90 20.75
Between 5 and 10 years 7.94 6.51
1 Total expected payments 34.00 28.79

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by an independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

This space has been left blank intentionally

VSPV & Co.

Chartered Accountants )
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38. Additional information pursuant to partdll of the Schedule Il to the C:
Net Assets i.e., Total Assets
minus total liabilities as at

Name of the Entity

i. Parent
2uari Infraworid India Limited
Amount
As % of Consolidated
ii. Foreign subsidiaries
a. 2uari Infra Middle East Limiled
! Amount
| As % of Consolidated

b. Zuari Infraworid S.M Elysium Properties LLC
(formely known as SJM Elysium Properties LLC)

Atnwunlt

AL % Ui Lonsalioaten
il A i [share of g 1

4. Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limiled

Amount

As % of Consolidated

b, Pranati Mietan Private Limited

Amount

As % of Consolidated

© Darshan Mirmaan Frivate Limiled

Amount

As % of Cansalidated

iv. Eliminati & adj on

Amounl
_ As W of Consolidated
Zuari Infraworld India Limited [Consolidated)
In Amount
'In Percentage {% )

14,722.57
1988.75%

565.45
7.56%

{1,143.43)
BEWLEH

(6.661.58)
-60.02%

7,483.02
100%

31 March 2023~ 31 March 2022

15,387.89
148.12%

565.45
5.a7%

{1,143.43)
-10.86%

{4.275.93)
-40.63%

10,530.99 1
100%

Act, 2013.

Share in Profit or Loss for the

year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(2,866.32)
57.63%

(471.64)
10.19%

(105,42
a.20%

(3.68)
0.08%

0.00%

0.00%

(1,370.04)

28.81%

(4,626.31)
100%

268.31
-21.48%

{471.64)
3T TT%

(105.42)
8.44%

(3.88)
0.31%

0.00%
0.00%
(938.15)

74,96%

(1,248.78)
100%

Share in Other

comprehensive Income for

the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

0.00%

(422.66)
100.00%

(422,66)
100%

VPV & Co.

cl«_a:'

815
-12.01%

(78.04)
112.01%

(67.88)
100%

- Aceountants

" "share in total comprehensive

income for the year ended

3 March 2023

(2,666.32)
52.81%

(471.64),
B.34%

(105.42)
2.00%

(3.08)
0.08%
0.00%:

0.00%

(1,801.71)
15.88%

(5,048.97)’
100%

31 March 2022 _

276 48
-21.00%

(471.84)
35.82%

(105 42)
8,019,

(3.88) 1
0.28%

0.00%
0.00%
1,012.18)

76.87%

(1,316.87),
100%
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39

39.1

39.2

Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Chief Financial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identified only one segment i.e., real estate sector
as its reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108.

Real Estate segment (RE) is into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects,
including leasing of self owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business
has been considered as a single operating component by the Management.

The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company's nperating segments as at year end:

Geographical information Non-current assets R from operations
As at As at for the yearended ~  for the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 202: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
'India 1,106.20 1,235.88 6,316.52 6,141.18
Outside India {Dubai) - - '900.00 300,00
1,105.20 1,235.88 7,216.52 6,441.18
Note:

Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets,
post-employment benefit assets etc.

Ri from the t contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Customer A - -

Customer B - -

Customer C N =

Total - =

Note:

There are no customers who individually contribute more than 10% of the total revenue of the Company. Accordingly, no disclosures

has been made in this regard.

a":t..d Agrountan s .
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40

L]

Disaggregation of revenue

|Particu|ars For the year ended 31 March |  For the year ended 31 March 2022
| 2023 |

India Outside India Outside India

- N I | India |

|Sale of residential units 6,375.11 - 3,996.22 -
Development management fees o '800.00 - 2,393.58 i -
Sales Commission on sale of plots/residential units 4141 5 51.37 -
Maintenance charges _ = | = — = =
Total I 7,216.52 - 6,441.18 -

Accounts of most of the trade payables, trade receivables, loans & advances and customer advances are subject to confirmation and
management does not except any material adjustments had the confirmation were received. In the opinion of the Management none
of the assets, other than property plant and equipment, have a value lower on realisation In the ordinary course of business than the
amount at which they are stated in these consolidated financial statements.

(Signatures to notes 1-2 & 29 to 41)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the standalone financial statements

i

As per our report attached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

\Zuari Infraworld India Limited

A =

Vikas Gupta, FCA (‘l\:a‘l\""(' ALOK BANERJEE ATHAR SHAHAB ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Membership No.200924 Director & CEO Director Chief Financial Officer
Partner O DIN: 01371033 DIN: 01824891

VSPV&ECo

Chartered Accountants
Firm.No. 005483N

Place: Bangalore

Date : 12.05.2023

UDIN: 23200924BGTDQO4140
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